
 

DESERT WATER AGENCY    BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
JANUARY 5, 2016                                                                 REGULAR MEETING AGENDA                                            
 
REGULAR MEETING   8:00 A.M.   OPERATIONS CENTER - 1200 SOUTH GENE AUTRY TRAIL  – PALM SPRINGS – CALIFORNIA 

About Desert Water Agency: 
Desert Water Agency operates independently of any other local government.  Its autonomous elected board members are directly accountable to the people they serve. The Agency is one of the desert’s 
two State Water Contractors and provides water and resource management, including recycling, for a 325-square-mile area of Western Riverside County, encompassing parts of Cathedral City, Desert 
Hot Springs, outlying Riverside County and Palm Springs. 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

2. ELECTION OF BOARD OFFICERS    
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES –  December 15, 2015  EWING                        

                                 
4. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   LUKER 

 
5. COMMITTEE REPORTS –   A. Executive – December 22, 2015         EWING  
                 
6. PUBLIC INPUT:  

Members of the public may comment on any item not listed on the agenda, but within the jurisdiction of the Agency.  In addition, members of the public 
may speak on any item listed on the agenda as that item comes up for consideration.  Speakers are requested to keep their comments to no more than 
three (3) minutes.  As provided in the Brown Act, the Board is prohibited from acting on items not listed on the agenda.                                                            

  
7. ITEMS FOR ACTION  
 A. Request Authorization for Board Attendance at the Irrigation Leader  LUKER 
  Workshop to be held on January 27 – 28, 2016   
   
 B. Request Authorization for Board Attendance at the Urban Water Institute Conference  LUKER 
  to be held on February 10 – 12, 2016 
 
 C. Request Acceptance of the 2014/2015 Replacement Pipeline (Ave. Caballeros)  JOHNSON 
 
 D. Request Authorization to Enter into a Joint Agreement with SCE and   KRAUSE 
  JTN Energy LLC for Snow Creek Hydro Power Purchase Agreement   
 
 E. Request Authorization to Execute Compensation Agreements for Transfer to City  KRAUSE 
  of Desert Hot Springs 
    
8. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION   

A. State Water Contractors’ Meeting – December 17, 2015  RIDDELL 
B. 2015/2016 Replacement Pipelines Update (Belding Drive)  JOHNSON                                                                      

 
9. PUBLIC INFORMATION  HUDGENS 
 A. Media Information 
 B. PI Activities 
 
10. DIRECTORS COMMENTS AND REQUESTS 

 
11. CLOSED SESSION 

 
 A.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al 
 
 B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. County of Riverside, et al 
  
 
 

 



 
DWA Board Agenda 
January 5, 2016 
Page 2 
 
 
 
 
 C. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Desert Water Agency vs. U.S. Department of Interior 
 
 
   
12. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION – REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 

 
13. ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Upon request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Any person 
with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting is asked to contact Desert Water Agency’s Executive Secretary, at (760) 323-4971, at least 48 working 
hours prior to the meeting to enable the Agency to make reasonable arrangements.  Copies of records provided to Board members which relate to any agenda item to be discussed in open session may 
be obtained from the Agency at the address indicated on the agenda. 



8612 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 12/15/15 

 

                                                    3 
MINUTES 

OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
December 15, 2015 

 
DWA Board: Craig A. Ewing, President ) 
 James Cioffi, Vice President   )         
 Joseph K. Stuart, Secretary-Treasurer ) 
 Patricia G. Oygar, Director ) 
 Kristin Bloomer, Director ) 
 
DWA Staff: David K. Luker, General Manager ) 
 Mark S. Krause, Asst. General Manager ) 
 Martin S. Krieger, Finance Director ) 
 Sylvia Baca, Asst. Secretary of the Board ) 
 Steve Johnson, Operations Engineer ) 
 Ashley Hudgens, Public Information Officer ) 
   
Consultant: Michael T. Riddell, Best Best & Krieger ) 
  
Public: David Freedman, PS Sustainability Comm. ) 
 Chris Lucker, Palm Springs ) 
       

Attendance 

17339.  President Ewing opened the meeting at 8:00 a.m. and asked 
everyone to join Director Bloomer in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
17340.  Assistant Secretary of the Board Baca administered the Oath 
of Office to Directors Ewing and Bloomer who were elected at the 
November 3, 2015 Election. 
 
  Director Bloomer thanked her family and friends for their 
support and said she is looking forward to working with the Board and 
staff. 
 
  President Ewing thanked his supporters and said that he is 
looking forward to serving on the Board for his third term. 
 
17341.  President Ewing called for approval of the December 1, 2015 
Regular Board meeting minutes. 
 
  Director Oygar moved for approval. After a second by Vice 
President Cioffi, the minutes were approved as written.  

Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 
 
Oath of Office – 
Directors Ewing and 
Bloomer 
 
 
 
Director Bloomer 
Comments 
 
 
 
President Ewing 
Comments 
 
 
 
Approval of the 
12/01/15 Regular Mtg. 
Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 



8613 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 12/15/15 

 
17342.  President Ewing called upon General Manager Luker to 
provide an update on Agency operations. 
 
  Mr. Luker reported on December 6 at approximately 6:00 
a.m., stand-by responded to a hit fire hydrant at Gene Autry Trail and Calle 
San Raphael. The hydrant had to be replaced and is back in service. The 
water ran fully open from a six-inch hydrant riser for approximately one 
hour. 
 
  Mr. Luker announced that the Agency recently received two 
President’s Special Recognition Awards from ACWA/JPIA for low ratio on 
paid claims. 
 
  Mr. Luker noted his report included an update to the 2015-16 
replacement pipeline projects. He stated that the City of Palm Springs is 
negotiating with Granite Construction for work on Belding Drive that is to 
be included in our change order, to replace 750 linear feet of a 4” diameter 
main. This was scheduled for replacement next year, but the Agency plans 
to proceed now, in order not to disturb the new paving. Estimated 
construction cost is $80,000 in additional to miscellaneous add-ons for a 
total of $93,500. 
 
  Concluding his report, Mr. Luker stated the Agency was 
recently informed that the Turf Buy Back rebate customers are subject to 
federal tax filings. The Agency will be sending out IRS Form 10-99 to its 
rebate customers receiving $600 or more from the program from the year 
2015 and forward. Staff is working on updating the application. 
 
17343.  President Ewing noted the minutes for the December 10, 2015 
Executive Committee were provided in the Board’s packet. 
 
17344.  President Ewing opened the meeting for public input. 
   
  Director Bloomer introduced her family members in 
attendance. 
 
  There being no one from the public wishing to address the 
Board, President Ewing closed the public comment period. 
   
17345.  President Ewing called upon Secretary-Treasurer Stuart to 
provide an overview of the financial activities for November 2015. 
 
  Secretary-Treasurer Stuart reported $1,817,921 was received 
in Water Sales Revenues. $103,419 was received in Reclamation Sales 
Revenues. $129,085 was received in Advanced Work Order Deposits from 
Riverside County for participation in the Perez Road main relocation. 
$2,366,360 was paid out from Accounts Payable. Year-to-date Water Sales 
are 9% over budget, Year-to-date Reclamation Sales are 8% under budget, 

General Manager’s 
Report 
 
 
 
Hit Hydrant – Gene 
Autry Trail/Calle San 
Raphael 
 
 
 
 
 
ACWA/JPIA Awards 
 
 
 
 
 
2015-16 Replacement 
Pipelines Update 
 
 
City Paving Project 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Turf Buy Back Program 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Committee Reports 
Executive 
12/10/15 
 
 
Public Input 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Secretary-Treasurer’s 
Report (November) 
 
 
 
Operating Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8614 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 12/15/15 

 
Year-to-date Total Revenues are 11% over budget, and Year-to-date Total 
Expenses are 15% under budget. There were 22,150 active services as of 
November 30, 2015 compared to 22,151 on October 31, 2015. 
 
  Reporting on the General Fund, Secretary-Treasurer Stuart 
stated that $95,282 was received in Property Tax Revenues. $868,330 was 
received in Groundwater Replenishment Assessments. $177,811 was 
received in State Water Project Refunds. $1,378,717 was paid out in State 
Water Project Charges. 
 
  Regarding the Wastewater Fund, Secretary-Treasurer Stuart 
reported that $4,614 was received in Sewer Contract payments. There are a 
total of 78 contracts with a 37% delinquency rate. $64,636 was paid out in 
Accounts Payable. 
 
17346.  President Ewing called upon General Manager Luker to report 
on the November Water Use Reduction Figures 
 
  Mr. Luker reported that the Agency and its customers 
achieved a 28 percent reduction during November 2015 compared to 
November 2013. He noted the first three fines for violating the Agency’s 
conservation rules were issued. 
 
  Public Information Officer Hudgens stated that she attended 
the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) meeting in Sacramento 
last week. She noted that the SWRCB was receptive to the changes 
requested. 
 
17347.  President Ewing asked Assistant General Manager Krause to 
report on the Lake Perris Seismic Remediation Project. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated at the Board’s request, cost information on 
this project is being provided. He indicated that Department of Water 
Resources (DWR) staff is trying to be responsive by providing updates 
through the State Water Contractors/DWR Operations Maintenance and 
Engineering (OME) Committee. An updated report dated November 5 is 
provided with today’s Board packet. The report includes a contract 
summary, list of contract challenges and their impacts, and a table showing 
contract payments and change orders. 
 
  Concluding his report, Mr. Krause noted that work is 
resuming on the blasting of the left dam abutment. 
 
17348.  President Ewing asked Assistant General Manager Krause to 
report on the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act Update. 
   
  Mr. Krause reported that the Department of Water Resources 
(DWR) posted the Agency’s Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) 

Secretary-Treasurer’s 
Report (November) 
(Cont.) 
 
 
 
General Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Wastewater Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Discussion Items: 
November Water Use 
Reduction Figures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Lake Perris Seismic 
Remediation Project 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SGMA Update 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8615 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 12/15/15 

 
Notice of Election on their website. The posting started the 90-day clock for 
approval and official formation of a GSA. He noted that if there are no 
other GSA applications submitted within our proposed boundaries, DWA 
will be a GSA on February 22, 2016. 
 
  Mr. Krause noted on December 1, Indio Water Authority 
went before their City Council for approval to submit their notice of intent 
to DWR to become a GSA. In addition to other documents, they submitted 
a resolution, which included wording, “It is the intent of the City through 
IWA to jointly manage the Indio Sub-Basin with CVWD, CWA, and DWA; 
and Mission Creek Sub-Basin with MSWD… If CWA or MSWD elects not 
to form a GSA, the City intends to assume, in the future, GSA 
responsibility over the portion of the Indio Sub-Basin within CWA service 
area boundary; and Mission Creek Sub-Basin within the MSWD service 
area boundary as applicable”. He stated that IWA boundaries do not overlie 
any portion of Mission Creek Sub-Basin nor are they involved in any 
groundwater management of the Sub-Basin. Additionally, CWA’s 
boundaries are overlaid by CVWD, not IWA. However, their 
aforementioned intentions are not reflected in the GSA boundary that they 
submitted to DWR. 
 
  Continuing his report, Mr. Krause stated on December 8, local 
agencies and interested parties within the San Gorgonio Pass Sub-basin met 
to discuss the SGMA as it relates to this sub-basin. There was lengthy 
discussion regarding basin boundary adjustment. It is anticipated within this 
group that the adjudicated portion of the sub-basin will be removed from 
the San Gorgonio Sub-Basin and added to the San Timoteo Sub-Basin. 
DWR has the final say in all basin boundary adjustments.  
 
  Concluding his report, Mr. Krause said that the next meeting 
is scheduled for the end of January 2016 to discuss the local agencies 
boundaries and review multiple GSA formation within the Sub-Basin and 
what the governance structure might look like. 
 
17349.  President Ewing, Vice President Cioffi and Secretary-
Treasurer Stuart noted their attendance at the ACWA Fall Conference in 
Indian Wells. They attended programs/presentations on finance, rate 
studies, tiered rate costs, allocation based rates, and DWR panel session. 
 
  President Ewing noted he concluded his ACWA Region 9 
Vice Chair term. 
 
17350.  Secretary-Treasurer Stuart noted a recent discussion with 
MSWD Board President Wright who informed him of their contention of 
GSA boundary issues and that they intend to file to become a GSA with 
DWR. 
 
 

Discussion Items: 
(Cont.) 
SGMA Update 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Directors’ Report on 
ACWA Fall 
Conference 
 
 
 
 
President Ewing – 
ACWA Board Term 
Concluded 
 
 
Directors’ 
Comments/Requests 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8616 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 12/15/15 

 
17351.  At 8:52 a.m., President Ewing convened into Closed Session 
for the purpose of (A) Existing Litigation, pursuant to Government Code 
Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. 
Coachella Valley Water District, et al, (B) Existing Litigation, pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla 
Indians vs. County of Riverside, et al, (C) Existing Litigation, pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Desert Water Agency vs. U.S. 
Department of Interior; and (D) Public Employment Appointment, pursuant 
to Government Code Section 54957 (b) (1), General Manager. 
 
17352.  At 9:16 a.m., President Ewing reconvened the meeting into 
open session and announced there was no reportable action for Items A-C. 
 
  Regarding Item D, Vice President Cioffi moved to approve 
Mr. Krause’s General Manager Employment Agreement. After a second by 
Secretary-Treasurer Stuart, the motion carried unanimously. 
 
17353.   In the absence of any further business, President Ewing 
adjourned the meeting at 9:17 a.m. 
 

                                         ____________________________________ 
                                         Craig A. Ewing, President                                 

 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Joseph K. Stuart, Secretary-Treasurer 

Closed Session: 
 
A. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. CVWD, et al 
B. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. Riverside 
County 
C. Existing Litigation – 
DWA vs. U.S. 
Department of Interior 
D. Public Employment 
Appointment – General 
Manager 
 
Reconvene 
 
No Reportable Action – 
Items A-C 
 
Item D. Public 
Employment 
Appointment – Mark 
Krause General Manager 
 
 
Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



4 

Page 1 of 3 

 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
JANUARY 5, 2016 

 
  
 

 

On December 16 at approximately 11:50 p.m., stand-by responded to a hit backflow at 1450 
South Palm Canyon Drive. This was a hit and run. Staff spoke to the manager who authorized 
DWA to make the necessary repairs. The repairs have been made, the backflow is back in 
service, and the water loss was metered.      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 



Page 2 of 3 

 

 

On December 17 at approximately 11:30 a.m. on the north side of Via Escuela, west of Girasol, a 
fire hydrant was approximately three quarters of the way severed six inches below the fire hydrant 
flange and bent over.  Granite Construction was out there grinding the street for paving. A DWA 
crew was in the area and able to respond quickly but were delayed having to locate the valve and 
dig it up due to the work Granite was doing. The water ran through a fully open six-inch riser for 
thrifty to forty-five minutes. The water was shooting up in the air and on the property at 447 Via 
Escuela. The water ran from the front of that property down to the east side toward the back south 
east corner of the property where a section of a brick wall came down against the trees at the 
property located at 423 Via Escuela. The water also flooded the backyard pool area at 423 Via 
Escuela. Water ran down Via Escuela, some of the side streets, down to North Palm Canyon Dr., 
and then ran south past Vista Chino.                 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                                    
 

 
 
 

 
 
 



Page 3 of 3 

 

 
 

On December 24 at 2:00 a.m., stand-by responded to two hit backflows at 36605 Sunair Plaza 
and 36480 Bankside Dr. (located next to each other). The backflow at 36480 Bankside Dr. was 
repaired by the customer’s plumber. The property management company for 36605 Sunair Plaza 
gave DWA authorization to make the necessary repairs, which have been made and is now back 
in service. A police report was made and the water loss was metered.              

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                                
 

 
 
 

 
 



 
5 

 
Minutes 

Executive Committee Meeting 
December 22, 2015 

 
 

Directors Present: Craig Ewing, Jim Cioffi      
Staff Present: Mark Krause, Martin Krieger, Ashley Hudgens  
    
 
1. Discussion Items 

 

A. Review Agenda for January 5, 2016 Regular Board Meeting 
The proposed agenda for the January 5, 2016 Regular Board meeting was 
reviewed. 

 
B.  Review Turf Buy Back Appeals to Date 
 The Committee reviewed the two appeals; both were denied. 
 
 
   

 2. Other - None 
   
           
 3. Adjourn 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



7-A 

BOARD/STAFF REPORTS/LUKER 

 
 

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
JANUARY 5, 2016 

 
RE: REQUEST AUTHORIZATION FOR BOARD ATTENDANCE 

AT IRRIGATION LEADER MAGAZINE’S OPERATIONS & 
MANAGEMENT WORKSHOP 

 
Attached is a copy of an announcement of the Operations and Management 
Workshop sponsored by Irrigation Leader magazine, which will be held on 
January 27 – 28, 2016 at the Crowne Plaza Phoenix Airport Hotel. 
 
Vice President Cioffi and Secretary-Treasurer Stuart have been invited to speak 
at this year’s event. The theme for this year is “Security: Protecting Personnel, 
Water, and the Bottom Line”. 
  
Staff recommends that the Board approve and authorize Vice President Cioffi 
and Secretary-Treasurer Stuart to attend the workshop in service to the Board. 
   
 



 1 

DRAFT (Note: This draft agenda and invited guest speakers are subject to change.) 
 
OPERATIONS and MANANGEMENT WORKSHOP 
Sponsored by Irrigation Leader magazine 
Crown Plaza Phoenix Airport Hotel 
4300 East Washington Street 
Phoenix, Arizona 85035 
January 27-28, 2016 
 
“Security: Protecting Personnel, Water, and the Bottom Line” 

 
WEDNESDAY, January 27   
Morning Training Sessions 
 
8:30 am Situational Awareness and Basic Defense 
Canyon I Speaker:   Phillip Ball 
  Situational Awareness Institute  
  Firearms Instructor GA, FL, FBI 
 
10:00 am    Refreshments Break Sponsored by TruePoint Solutions 
     
 
10:30 am Managing Crisis with a Media Plan 
Canyon Ballroom Speaker: Keith Yaskin 
  Flip Side Communications              
 
Afternoon Program 
Canyon Ballroom 
 
1:00 pm   Welcome: Kris Polly 
                        Irrigation Leader magazine 
 
    Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 
 
    Basic Security for Irrigation Districts and Water Agencies 
  
   Moderator: Troy Allen 
     General Manager 
     Delta Lake Irrigation District 
 
 Speakers: Phillip Ball 
  Situational Awareness Institute  
  Firearms Instructor GA, FL, FBI 
 
  Joe Stuart 
  Director, Desert Water Agency 
  FBI, Retired 



 2 

2:00 pm     Active Shooter Plans 
    

   Moderator: Steve Cain 
     Assistant General Manager 
     Provo Water Users Association 
 
 Speakers: Phillip Ball 
  Situational Awareness Institute  
  Firearms Instructor GA, FL, FBI 
 
  Joe Stuart 
  Director, Desert Water Agency 
  FBI, Retired 

     
3:00 pm    Ice Cream Sundae Break  
    Sponsored by Van Ness Feldman 

 
3:30 pm    Managing Stress and Conflict Resolution 

 
    Moderator:  Tom Knutson 
     Senior Consultant 

     HDR Engineering 
 

    Speakers:  Glenn Johnson 
     General Manager 
     South Platte Natural Resources District 
 
     Dave Solem 
     General Manager 
     South Columbia Basin Irrigation District 

 
4:30 am     Conjunctive Use: Managing Ground and Surface Water Supplies Together 

    Case Studies:  Central Platte Natural Resources District 
     A&B Irrigation District 
 
    Moderator: Lyndon Vogt 
     General Manager  
     Central Platte Natural Resources District 

 
    Speakers:  Dan Temple 
     General Manager 
     A & B Irrigation District 

 
     Harold Mohlman 
     Director 
     A & B Irrigation District 
 

David Chorley 



 3 

Sales Representative 
Diamond Plastic 

 
5:30 pm    Reception Sponsored By Diamond Plastics 

  
THURSDAY, January 28  
Canyon Ballroom 
8:00 am   Welcome: Kris Polly 
                        Irrigation Leader magazine 
 
    Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 
 
    Project Title Transfer: Advantages and Process 

     
    Moderator: Mike Miller 
     General Manager  
     Greater Wenatchee Irrigation District 

 
    Speakers:  Tom Knutson 
     Senior Consultant 

     HDR Engineering 
 
     Gary Esslinger 
     Treasurer/Manager 
     Elephant Butte Irrigation District 
 
     James Hess 
     Bureau of Reclamation 
 
9:00 am    Prospering With Limited Water: Israel and Australia  

    
   Speakers:      Dr. Sharon Megdal 

Director of Water Resources Research Center 
University of Arizona 
 

    Damien Pearson 
    Rubicon 

    
10:00 am    Refreshments Break 
    Sponsored by Watertronics 
 
10:30 am    Public Outreach: Delivering Your Message With Radio and TV 

    Case Studies:  Kennewick Irrigation District 
                        Desert Water Agency 
 
    Moderator: Keith Yaskin 
     Flip Side Communications 

 



 4 

    Speakers:  Chuck Freeman 
     General Manager 
     Kennewick Irrigation District 

 
     Ashley Hudgens 
     Public Affairs Officer 
     Desert Water Agency 
 

 11:30 pm   Public Outreach: Value of Hiring Teachers During Summer Break 
    Case Study: Roosevelt Water Conservation District  
 

   Speaker:      Shane Leonard    
    District Engineer 
    Roosevelt Water Conservation District 

 
    
12:00 pm     Lunch Sponsored by Roosevelt Water Conservation District 
 
    Guest Speaker: Jim Cioffi 
     
1:30 pm    Financing Hydro Development 

    Case Studies: North Side Canal Co., Ltd., Idaho 
     North Unit Irrigation District, Oregon 
 

   Moderator: John Maxwell 
    HDR Engineering 
 
   Speakers:      Alan W. Hansten, P.E. 

Manager 
    North Side Canal Co., Ltd. 
 
    Dan Murrer 
    CH2M Hill 
 
    Mike Britton 
    General Manager 
    North Unit Irrigation District 
 
    Gia Schneider 
    NATEL 
 
    Stan Schweissing 
    HDR Engineering 
 
    Chuck Sensiba 
    Van Ness Feldman 

 
3:00 pm   Refreshments Break Sponsored by Intertape Polymer Group (IPG)  



 5 

 
3:30 pm   Preventing Debris While Pumping Out of Rivers and Canals 
    Case Study: Wietharn Farms, Clay Center, Kansas  
 

   Speaker:      Bob Wietharn    
    Owner/Farmer 
    Riverscreens 

 
 
4:00 pm   Saving Water By Combining Pivot Mobility with Drip Efficiency 
    Case Study: Teeter Farms, Eureka, Kansas 
 

   Speaker:      Monty Teeter 
    Owner/Farmer 
    Teeter Irrigation/DragonLine 

 
4:30 pm   Open Forum  
     
     (Note: Topics may be added by attendees at the meeting.) 

 
  Moderator: Kris Polly 
   Irrigation Leader magazine 

1. Working with/training a bilingual workforce 
2. Acquiring easements 
3. Retaining workers 
4. Union negotiations  

    
5:30 pm    Reception Sponsored by Wells Fargo Insurance Services &  
    Clear Risk Solutions 
 
    Australia Irrigation Education Tour Door Prizes Sponsored by  
    Irrigation Leader Magazine and Rubicon 
 
HOTEL INFORMATION:  The workshop will take place at the Crowne Plaza Phoenix Airport Hotel 
located at 4300 East Washington Street, Phoenix, Arizona 85034. Your reservation includes a 
complimentary full “Express” breakfast, complimentary 24 hour airport shuttle service, 
complimentary wireless Internet service, and complimentary Valet parking for registered guests with in 
and out privileges.   To make or confirm your reservations at the special Irrigation Leader rate, please 
call 1-855-586-8475 and identify yourself with the Irrigation Leader group.   
 
FYI:  For the Express Breakfast – guests are given a choice of 3 options: 
·         Scrambled eggs, bacon or sausage patties, breakfast potatoes and toast 
·         Quiche of the day with fresh fruit 
·         Breakfast burrito or breakfast sandwich with fresh fruit 

** All options include choice of juice and coffee 
 

QUESTIONS:  Please contact Kris Polly at (703) 517-3962 or Kris.Polly@WaterStrategies.com. 



7-B 

BOARD/STAFF REPORTS/LUKER 

 
 

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
JANUARY 5, 2016 

 
RE: REQUEST AUTHORIZATION FOR BOARD ATTENDANCE 

AT URBAN WATER INSTITUTE’S SPRING WATER 
CONFERENCE  

 
Attached for the Board’s consideration is a copy of a conference agenda for the 
Urban Water Institute’s Spring Water Conference, which will be held on February 
10 – 12, 2016 at the Hilton Palm Springs Hotel.   
 
As in past practice, Staff recommends that the Board approve and authorize 
those Board Members who are interested in attending the conference as in 
service to the Board. 
   
 



 
 
 

Urban Water Institute Spring Water Conference 
February 10-12, 2016 

 

Conference Agenda 
 
Wednesday, February 10, 2015 
12:00 p.m. - Registration, Networking & Exhibits 
 
1:00 p.m. - Opening Remarks & Introduction 
  Matt Stone, Chair, Urban Water Institute  
 
1:15 p.m. - Welcome to Palm Springs  
 
1:30 p.m. – Colorado River Supply Demand Study 
  Carly Jerla, Colorado River Basin Study Manager, U.S. Bureau of Reclamation 
  (Confirmed) 
  
2:00 p.m. – Colorado River Upper Basin Issues 
  Eric Kuhn, General Manager, Colorado River Water Conservation District 
  (Confirmed) 
 
2:30 p.m. – Networking Break 
 
2:45 p.m. – Speaker Secured (Wishes not to be listed at this time) 
 
3:15 p.m. – Brad Udall, Colorado Water Institute, Colorado State University (Invited) 
 
4:00 p.m. - Adjourn 
 
4:30 p.m. - Welcome Reception  
 
5:30 p.m. – Dinner on Your Own 
 

 

 

 



 
Thursday, February 11, 2015 
8:00 a.m. - Registration, Exhibits, Networking & Continental Breakfast 
 
9:00 a.m. - Opening Remarks  

 James Noyes, Executive Director, Urban Water Institute 
 
9:15 a.m. – Road to Sustainability 
  Marty Adams, Assistant General Manager, Los Angeles Department of Water 
  and Power (Confirmed) 

 
9:45 a.m. – MWD & LA County Sanitation Recycle Project 
  Debra Man, Assistant General Manager, Metropolitan Water District of  
  Southern California (Confirmed) 
  Grace Hyde, General Manager & Chief Engineer, LA County Sanitation 
  Districts (Confirmed) 
  Mike Markus, General Manager, Orange County Water District (Confirmed) 
 
10:45 a.m. – Networking Break 
 
11:00 a.m. – Salton Sea… Have We Finally Turned The Corner? 
  Valerie Simon, Salton Sea Program Manager, Bureau of Reclamation 
  Imperial Representative (Confirmed) 
  Tina Shields, Manager, Colorado River Resources Imperial Irrigation  
  District (Confirmed) 

 
12:00 p.m. – Luncheon 
 
1:00 p.m. – Secretary John Laird, California Secretary for Natural Resources (Invited) 
 
1:45 p.m. – Desal: What Happens After Carlsbad? 
  Rich Nagel, General Manager, West Basin Municipal Water District  
  (Confirmed) 
  Poseidon Water Representative (Confirmed) 
 
2:30 p.m. – Networking Break 
 
2:45 p.m. – Panel: Coachella Valley Water District/Mission Springs Water District 
   
 
 
 



 
3:30 p.m. – Industries Reaction to the Drought 
  Craig Kessler, Director of Government Affairs, Southern California Golf  
  Association (Confirmed) 
  Stone Brewery Representative (Invited) 
 
4:15 p.m. – John Enstminger, General Manager, Southern Nevada Water Authority  
  (Confirmed) 
 
4:45 p.m. - Adjourn – Chairman’s Reception 
 
6:00 p.m. - Dinner on your own 
 
Friday, February 12, 2015 
8:00 a.m. – Registration, Exhibits, Networking & Buffet Breakfast with Chairman's  
  Drawing: Don't miss out on your opportunity to participate in the   
  Chairman's Drawing!  Please pick up your raffle ticket at the registration 
  desk. 
 

8:30 a.m. - Opening Remarks 
  James Noyes, Executive Director, Urban Water Institute 
 
8:45 a.m. – Applying the Lessons of History to California’s Water Future 
  Moderator: Ed Means, President, Means Consulting, LLC (Confirmed) 
  Ron Gastelum, Principal, Water Conservation Partners (Confirmed) 
  Woody Wodraska, President, Wodraska Partners, Inc. (Confirmed) 
 
9:45 a.m. – Networking Break 
 
10:00 a.m. – The Future of Water Conservation Regulations – With or Without Drought 
  California is on the precipice of either a fifth year of drought, or potentially catastrophic floods.  What does 
  either scenario portend for the future of water conservation regulations? 

  Moderator: Greg Newmark, Principal, Meyers Nave (Confirmed) 
  Rusty Bailey, Mayor of Riverside (Confirmed) 
  State Water Board Representative (Invited) 
   
10:45 a.m. – Speaker Pending 
 

11:15 a.m. - Conference Adjourn 
 
 
 



7-C 
 
      

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
JANUARY 5, 2016  

 
 

RE: REQUEST ACCEPTANCE OF 2014-2015 REPLACEMENT 
PIPELINE – AVENIDA CABALLEROS 36” PIPELINE 
(BETWEEN AMADO ROAD AND ALEJO ROAD)   

 
All work performed by Borden Excavating, Inc. has been essentially completed. The 
original contract amount, contract change orders, and the adjusted contract amount are 
summarized as follows: 
    

Original Contract Amount                           $1,339,730.00 
Contract Change Order No. 1                              $815.02 
 
 
Final Contract Amount                                $1,340,545.02 

 
Contract Change Order No. 1 yielded a net increase in the contract amount as a result 
of extra work related to unmarked utilities within the proposed pipeline trench. A majority 
of the extra work was offset by the deletion of a paving bid item that was not performed 
by the contractor. 
 
The 2014-2015 Capital Improvement Budget includes Work Order 14-195 for the 
installation of said replacement pipeline. The budget amount for the work order is 
$1,700,000, to include engineering, overheads, construction, and inspection. To date, 
$1,469,900 has been spent from said work order, with an additional estimated 
inspection cost in the amount of $20,000 to be paid before closing the work order.  The 
project is estimated to be completed $210,100 under budget. 
 
Staff recommends the Agency accept said work in the amount of $1,340,545.02. 
Subsequent to Board acceptance, a Notice of Completion will be filed and thereafter, 
following the lien period, the Agency will release retained funds in the amount of 
$67,027.25 to Borden Excavating, Inc. 



Page 1 of 2 
 

7-D 
 
 

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
JANUARY 5, 2016 

 
 
RE: REQUEST APPROVAL TO ENTER INTO A JOINT AGREEMENT 

WITH SCE AND JTN ENERGY LLC FOR SNOW CREEK HYDRO 
POWER PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

 
On November 20, 1984, DWA executed a Power Purchase Contract with Southern 
California Edison Company (SCE) for the Snow Creek Power Plant.  The term of the 
Power Purchase Contract was 30 years.  The 30-year term of the contract began on the 
Commercial Operation Date on February 2, 1988 as recorded by Edison.  The Snow 
Creek Power Plant went online 28 years ago and its Power agreement will expire in 25 
months on February 2, 2018. 
 
Entering into a new Power Purchase Agreement with SCE today is a lengthy process.  
DWA began investigating the requirements and the options several months ago when 
considering JTN Energy, LLC (JTN) as the consultant to procure a 20-year term 
Renewable Market Adjusted Tariff (ReMAT) contract with SCE for the Whitewater 
Power Plant.  Subsequently JTN was hired by DWA and CVWD to do this work and it is 
currently ongoing.  It was initially determined that pursuing a ReMAT contract for the 
Snow Creek Power Plant would be too costly when weighed against the monetary 
benefits of a ReMAT Contract.  Recently it was determined that because the Snow 
Creek Power Plant’s peak output of 361 Kilowatts (KW) is below 500 KW, it is not 
subject to the California Independent System Operator (CAISO) regulation. This 
reduces a substantial amount of work and cost required in the procurement of a ReMAT 
contract. 
 
In light of this new information JTN revisited the cost effectiveness of procuring a 
ReMAT contract with SCE.  JTN has proposed a contract agreement almost identical to 
the agreement we entered into for the Whitewater Power Plant.  Payment for JTN’s 
services is contingent upon the revenue generated by the power plant, it is a deferred 
fee for the consulting services proposed here for a 20 year ReMAT contract.  The fee 
will be 2.0 cents/kilowatt-hour (c/kWh) for the 20 year term of the ReMAT contract.  
Given the anticipated ReMAT pricing adjusted for time-of-use is calculated to be 8.92 
c/kWh, DWA is expected to receive an average price of approximately 6.92 c/kWh net 
of JTN fees. These fees are unit contingent and only payable if the Project is operating 
and selling power to SCE under the ReMAT contract. This fee level is based on the 
historical average annual production of the facility at 576,882 kWh per year (full years 
1988 - 2014). Given the possibility that the operating regime for the Project may be  



Page 2 of 2 
 

changed in the future resulting in higher production levels, the fee is capped for the term 
of this agreement at the maximum historical annual production, which was 1,261,474  
kWh in 1998. JTN’s power marketing related fee will accordingly be capped and never 
exceed (2 c/kWh x 1,261,474 kWh =) $25,229 per year, even if the plant generates at 
significantly higher levels of production.   
 
The term of the contract begins with an administration period defined as the time period 
between the present and February 2, 2018, and then continuing on an additional 13 
months up to the “Rollover Date”.  During the 13 month time period following the 
termination of our current PPA and the beginning of the new ReMAT PPA, JTN will be 
administering the PPA while training DWA to staff to take over administration.  JTN’s 
only compensation for all work up to this Rollover Date will be 2.0 cents per kilowatt 
hour of Snow Creek Power Plant power production if and when it generates. The term 
of the contract will continue to the end of the PPA term (20 years) with JTN providing 
contract management for an annual fee of $12,750 adjusted annually for inflation based 
on CPI.  The annual contract management after the Rollover Date is optional and can 
be cancelled by DWA at any point per the contract notice provisions.   
  
JTN will prepare a ReMAT application for DWA and submit it to SCE.  DWA will pay the 
$702 application fee ($2/kW x 351 kW).  SCE will confirm receipt of the application and 
deem it complete for the applicable program period.  If given approval today to enter 
into an agreement with JTN for the procurement of a ReMAT contract with SCE, DWA 
could apply to ReMAT Program Period 14 closing on 03/01/16, secure a contract in 
June 2016, and lock in a ReMAT contract at 8.923 c/kWh which would only begin 
deliveries in early 2018 when the existing SO4 power sales expires. 
 
If DWA doesn't pursue the ReMAT, the other options are the standard SCE QF PURPA 
PPA which is currently paying only 3 - 3.5 c/kWh or sale via an Electric Service Provider 
(ESP) that might put a little more value on the  Renewable Energy Credits (RECs) 
bumping up price to around 4 c/kWh. 
 
After receipt of the application SCE will began drafting a PPA agreement between SCE 
and DWA.  SCE has 60 days to prepare said agreement and we will have 10 days to 
respond.   
 
The SCE ReMAT tariff requires a Guaranteed Energy Production (GEP) annually and a 
penalty for underproduction.  JTN has been successful in securing ReMAT PPA’s with a 
zero GEP, and they were successful with regard to our Whitewater Power Plant.  Our 
contract with JTN is dependent upon the procurement of an SCE ReMAT contract that 
has a zero GEP.  If a zero GEP is not procured, we may reject SCE’s PPA, forfeit our 
$702 application fee, and pay JTN a fixed $7,560 payment (a discount from JTN’s 
application preparation expenses of $15,120).  As stated above we must accept or 
reject the contract within 10 days.  If we fail to respond or reject the contract we will be 
required to start all over from the beginning. 
 
Staff requests authorization for the General Manager to enter into a consulting contract 
with JTN Energy, LLC for the procurement of a 20-year term SCE ReMAT contract 
(attached), and to execute the forthcoming 20-year term ReMAT PPA when prepared by 
SCE. 



1 

 

CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 
This Consultant Services Agreement (the "Agreement") is entered into this _____ day of January , 2016 
by and between  JTN Energy, LLC (JTN), a limited liability company (the "Consultant") and Desert Water 
Agency, a Public Agency of the State of California  (“DWA”). The Consultant and DWA are collectively 
referred to herein as the "Parties," or individually as a "Party." 

      RECITALS 

 A.  DWA owns and operates the Snow Creek hydroelectric project, FERC ID# 4026, a 361 kW 
nameplate run-of-river hydro project located on Snow Creek Road in Riverside County, California. The 
project was commissioned February 2, 1988 and DWA has operated the facility since commissioning 
with power and renewable attributes sold to SCE under a Standard Offer No. 4 contract.  

 B.  The current Standard Offer No. 4 power sale contract expires in February 1, 2018. To assist 
DWA to secure a new attractive power sales contract and to undertake a range of required business and 
regulatory work and training activities, DWA wishes to engage JTN, as an independent contractor, to 
provide the services hereinafter set forth.   

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 
hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:  

 
ARTICLE I 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

1.01. Scope of Services. The scope of services to be provided by Consultant is set forth in  
Exhibit "A" and by this reference incorporated herein (the "Scope of Services"). 

1.02. Change Orders. In order to complete the Scope of Services detailed in Exhibit “A”, 
Consultant may be required to adjust, change, or expand the Scope of Services in order to achieve the 
identified milestones. Given the success contingent nature of the Consultant fees, any such adjustments 
will not result in any new fees or payment obligations by DWA to Consultant. However, to the degree 
that DWA and Consultant identify additional work activities which will result in the addition of 
milestones not included in the original Scope of Services, DWA and Consultant may mutually agree to 
add to the Scope of Services. Any such addition to the Scope of Services (“Change Orders”) must be by 
written instructions issued by either the General Manager of the DWA (the "General Manager"), or his 
or her designee, and the provisions of this Agreement, other than Fees, shall apply to all such Change 
Orders. Such written authorization shall either be in the form of a written Change Order or written 
addendum to this Agreement. The cost of such Change Orders, which may increase the work specified 
hereunder and require an extension of completion time, shall be based on the hourly fees listed in 
Exhibit “B” and must be mutually agreed upon in writing by the General Manager, or his or her 
designee, and Consultant before commencement of the work called for by such Change Order. 



2 

 

1.03. Permits, Licenses, and Notices. Consultant shall, in accordance with applicable laws and 
ordinances, secure and ensure that any subconsultants secure all permits and licenses necessary to 
accomplish the Scope of Services, and shall give all notices necessary and obtain all required inspections. 
Failure to maintain the required license or permit may result in immediate termination of this 
Agreement. Professional Engineers and Professional Land Surveyors shall be duly registered in the State 
of California. Consultant shall keep itself informed of and comply with, all applicable federal, state and 
local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, regulations and rules in effect during the term of this Agreement. 

1.04. Time To Perform Services. Consultant shall perform the services in accordance with the 
schedule set forth in the Scope of Services. Consultant shall commence work promptly upon full 
execution of this Agreement. Consultant shall confer with DWA representatives as provided in the Scope 
of Services to review progress of work activities, adhere to work schedule, coordinate with, and 
schedule review and resolution of problems that may develop. 

1.05. Qualifications. Consultant represents and warrants to DWA that it has the qualifications, 
experience and facilities necessary to properly perform the Scope of Services in a competent and 
professional manner. In each instance, the individual(s) performing the specific tasks contemplated 
under the Scope of Services shall be appropriately certified and/or qualified under California law. In 
meeting its obligations under this Agreement, Consultant shall employ, at a minimum, general standards 
and practices utilized by persons/entities engaged in providing services similar to those required of 
Consultant under this Agreement. Failure to maintain the proper certification, licenses, or other 
qualifications for the individual(s) performing the specific tasks contemplated under the Scope of 
Services will be considered a default under this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE II 

PAYMENT FOR SERVICES RENDERED 
 

2.01. Payment for Services Rendered. DWA shall compensate Consultant for the actual services 
performed pursuant to this Agreement in accordance with the Payment and Milestone Schedule 
attached hereto as Exhibit "B" and by this reference incorporated herein (the “Payment and Milestone 
Schedule”). 

2.02. Billing Procedure. See Exhibit “B” for detailed billing procedures.  

2.03. Payment. See Exhibit “B” for payment process and obligations.  

2.04. No Acceptance or Waiver Implied By Payment. No payment shall constitute acceptance of 
any work completed by Consultant, and the making of final payment shall not constitute a waiver of any 
claims by the DWA for any reason whatsoever. Payment by DWA under this Agreement shall not be 
interpreted to imply the DWA has inspected, approved, or accepted the work that is been performed by 
Consultant. 



3 

 

 
ARTICLE III 

WORK PRODUCT AND MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS 
 

3.01. Work Product. All original papers, documents, drawings and other work product of 
Consultant or produced by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement, except documents which must be 
filed with public agencies, shall be deemed solely the property of DWA and may be used, reused or 
otherwise disposed of by DWA without the permission of Consultant. Consultant will take all steps 
necessary to perfect or protect the ownership interest of DWA in such work product. Upon completion, 
expiration or termination of this agreement, Consultant shall release to DWA all original work products 
in its possession; provided, however, that Consultant may retain copies of the work product. 

3.02. Ownership of Work Product. Any interest (including copyright interests) of Consultant or 
its subconsultants, and studies, reports, memoranda, computational sheets, drawings, plans or any 
other documents (including electronic media) prepared by Consultant or its subconsultants at any time 
in connection with the services under this Agreement, shall be, immediately upon its creation, the 
property of DWA. To the extent permitted by Title 17 of United States Code, work product produced 
under this Agreement shall be deemed works for hire and all copyrights in such works shall be the 
property of DWA. In the event that it is ever determined that any works and any former works created 
by Consultant or its subconsultants under this Agreement are not works for hire under the law of the 
United States, Consultant hereby assigns to DWA all copyrights to such works when created. Consultant 
may retain and use copies of such works for reference and as documentation of experience and 
capabilities. 

3.03. Confidentiality of Work Product. Except as necessary for the performance of services 
under this Agreement, no work product prepared under this Agreement will be released by Consultant 
to any other person or entity without the DWA's prior written consent. All press releases, including 
graphic display information to be published, must be approved and distributed solely by the DWA, 
unless otherwise agreed to in writing by DWA. 

3.04. Maintenance of Records. Consultant shall maintain all documents and records 
demonstrating or relating to Consultant's performance of services under this Agreement. Consultant 
shall maintain all ledgers, books of account, invoices, vouchers, canceled checks, or other documents or 
records evidencing or relating to work, services, expenditures and disbursements charged to DWA under 
this Agreement. All such documents and records must be maintained in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles and must be sufficiently complete and detailed so as to permit an 
accurate evaluation of the services provided by Consultant under this Agreement. All such documents or 
records must be maintained for three (3) years following the final payment under this Agreement. 

3.05. Audit of Records. The Consultant shall maintain full adequate records in accordance with 
DWA requirements to show the actual costs incurred by the Consultant in the performance of this 
Agreement. Consultant shall, upon request of DWA, make such books and records available to DWA for 



4 

 

inspection. DWA further reserves the right to examine and re-examine said books, records and data 
during the three-year period following termination of this Agreement or completion of all work 
hereunder, as evidenced in writing by DWA, and the Consultant shall in no event dispose of, destroy, 
alter, or mutilate such books, records, accounts, and data in any manner whatsoever for three (3) years 
after DWA makes the final or last payment or within three years after any pending issues between DWA 
and Consultant with respect to this Agreement are closed, whichever is later. 

3.06. Availability of Records. All records or documents required to be maintained by this Article 
III must be made available for inspection, audit and copying upon three (3) days written request by DWA 
or its designated representative. Copies of such documents or records must be provided directly to DWA 
for inspection, audit and copying, when it is practical to do so; otherwise, unless an alternative is 
mutually agreed-upon, such documents and records must be made available at Consultant's address 
indicated for receipt of notices in this Agreement. 

3.07. Custody of Records. Where DWA has reason to believe that any of the documents or 
records required by this Article III may be lost or discarded due to dissolution or termination of 
Consultant's business, DWA may, by written request, require that copies of all such documents or 
records be provided directly to DWA or its successors-in-interest and authorized representatives. 

3.08. Public Records Act. Both Parties understand and agree the DWA must comply with the 
California Public Records Act (the "PRA"). If Consultant believes that any document or information 
furnished to DWA in connection with Consultant's performance of services is exempt from public 
disclosure under the PRA, it will advise DWA in writing at the time the document or information is 
furnished. 

 
ARTICLE IV 

TERM, SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION OF SERVICES 
 

4.01. Term. This Agreement shall become effective upon execution by all Parties and shall expire 
concurrently with the expiration or termination of the ReMAT Contract, referenced in Exhibit “A”, 
unless earlier terminated as hereinafter set forth. 

4.02. Suspension of Services. DWA may direct Consultant to suspend, delay or interrupt services 
under this Agreement, in whole or in part, for such periods of time as DWA may determine in its sole 
discretion. DWA may issue such directives without cause. DWA will issue such directives in writing. 
Suspension of services shall be treated as an excusable delay. In the event of a Suspension of Service 
extends for more than 30 days, the Suspension of Service will be considered a Termination for 
Convenience under Article 4.04. 

4.03. Termination for Breach. Either Party may terminate performance of the services under 
this Agreement in whole, or from time-to-time in part, for default (as defined in Section 5.01), should 
the other Party commit a material breach of this Agreement, or part thereof, and cannot cure such 



5 

 

breach within ten (10) calendar days of the date of non-breaching Party's written notice to the 
breaching Party demanding such cure. 

4.04. Termination for Convenience. Either Party may terminate performance of the services 
under this Agreement in whole for convenience, whenever a Party determines that such termination is 
in its best interests up to the Rollover Date (the “Rollover Date” is the date thirteen (13) months after 
the Snow Creek project begins commercial operations under the ReMAT contract). In the event DWA 
terminates this Agreement for convenience, Consultant shall be entitled to be paid for services 
satisfactorily performed prior to the termination as described in Exhibit “B”, but will not recover other 
costs, damages or expenses. After the Rollover Date, either Party may terminate service category (C) 
Ongoing Contract Management services, as long as the terminating Party provides at least 60 days 
written notice before the anniversary of the Rollover Date.  

4.05. Duties of Consultant Upon Termination by DWA. Following any termination under this 
Article IV, Consultant shall: 

(a) Reimburse DWA for any compensation paid in excess of services rendered; 

(b) Stop services under the Agreement on the date and to the extent specified in the 
notice of termination; 

(c) Assign to DWA in the manner, at times, and to the extent directed by DWA, all title and 
interest of work product under orders and subcontracts so terminated; 

(d) Complete performance of any part of the services which were not terminated; and 

(e) Take such action as may be necessary, or as DWA may direct, for the protection and 
preservation of property related to this Agreement which is in Consultant's possession and 
in which DWA has or may acquire an interest. 

 
ARTICLE V 

DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 
 

5.01. Default. It shall be considered a default under this Agreement if either Party fails to 
perform or observe any term, covenant or undertaking in this Agreement that is to be performed or 
observed and such default continues for 10 days from a written notice sent in a manner provided in 
Paragraph 4.02 of this Agreement. In the event the defaulting Party does not remedy the default within 
the 10 day period, the nondefaulting Party may send a written notice of termination to the defaulting 
Party specifying the date upon which the termination shall become effective. 

5.02. Remedies. Upon a default hereunder, the nondefaulting Party shall have such rights and 
remedies as are provided herein and such additional remedies as now or hereafter exist at law or in 
equity. 



6 

 

 
ARTICLE VI 

PROJECT MANAGER 
 

6.01. Project Manager. Consultant hereby names Todd Thorner as Consultant's project manager (the 
"Project Manager") under the terms of this Agreement. The Project Manager is authorized to act on 
behalf of Consultant with respect to the Scope of Services, and to make all decisions on behalf of 
Consultant in connection therewith. Consultant shall not substitute the designated Project Manager 
without first notifying DWA in writing. DWA shall have the right to review the qualifications of said 
substitute. If DWA reasonably determines said substitute Project Manager is unacceptable, Consultant 
shall submit alternate candidates until DWA reasonably determines that substitute Project Manager is 
acceptable. 

 
 

ARTICLE VII 
INSURANCE 

 
7.01. Limits of Insurance. Consultant shall carry and maintain at Consultant's expense, at all 

times during the term of this Agreement, not less than the following coverage and limits of insurance 
which shall be maintained with insurers and under forms of policies reasonably satisfactory to DWA. 

(a) Commercial General Liability for Bodily Injury and Property Damage including coverage 
for contractual liability, personal injury, independent contractors, broad form property 
damage, products and completed operations: $1,000,000 per person, $1,000,000 per 
occurrence. 

(b) Automobile Liability for Bodily Injury and Property Damage including coverage for 
owned, nonowned, leased and hired vehicles: $1,000,000 per person, $1,000,000 per 
occurrence. 

(c) Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability as required by law: 

i. State Workers' Compensation coverage; and 

ii. Employer's Liability of at least $1,000,000 per occurrence. 

The commercial general liability and automobile liability insurance must be on an "occurrence" 
basis, not a claims-made basis. The foregoing policies may contain an aggregate limit not less than the 
occurrence limit. The required limits may be satisfied by a combination of a primary policy and an excess 
or umbrella policy.  

The existence of the required insurance coverage under this Agreement shall not be deemed to 
satisfy or limit Consultant's indemnity obligations under this Agreement. Consultant acknowledges that 



7 

 

the insurance coverage and policy limits set forth in this Agreement constitute the minimum coverage 
and policy limit required. 

7.02. Provisions of Insurance. All insurance required pursuant to the express provision of this 
Agreement shall: 

(a) Provide that coverage shall not be revised, cancelled, or reduced without thirty (30) 
days prior written notice to DWA. In the event any policies of insurance are revised, 
cancelled or reduced, Consultant shall, prior to the revision, reduction or cancellation 
date, submit evidence of new insurance to the DWA complying with this Article. 

(b) Be issued by insurance companies licensed and qualified to do business in the State of 
California.  

(c) Be reasonably satisfactory to DWA in all other reasonable respects. 

(d) The policies required pursuant to this Agreement or a certificate of the policies shall be 
provided to DWA upon the execution of this Agreement. 

(e) The commercial general and automobile liability insurance to be maintained by 
Consultant pursuant to this section shall name DWA, its officers, and employees as 
additional insureds by endorsement with respect to liabilities arising out of the 
performance of services hereunder. 

iii. All policies above-required are to be primary and non-contributory with any 
insurance or self-insurance programs carried by or administered by the DWA. 

iv. In the event Consultant subcontracts any portion of the work in compliance with 
Paragraph 10.16, the agreement between the Consultant and the subcontractor 
shall require the subcontractor to carry the same types and amounts of insurance 
that the Consultant is required to maintain pursuant to this Article. 

 
 

ARTICLE VIII 
INDEMNIFICATION AND LIABILITY 

 
8.01. Consultant's Duty to Indemnify.  Consultant shall indemnify and hold harmless, 

and when requested by DWA to do so, defend DWA, its directors, employees and independent 
contractors from any and all claims, demands or charges and from any loss or liability including 
attorney’s fees and expenses of litigation arising out of negligent acts including negligent errors or 
omissions, violations of laws, willful misconduct or fraudulent representations or concealment of 
Consultant, its employees or anyone else employed by Consultant in the performance of the contract, 
excepting and excluding liability or damages caused by reason of the sole negligence of DWA or the 



8 

 

willful misconduct or fraudulent  representation or concealment of DWA, its directors, volunteers, 
employees or independent contractors. 

 
 

ARTICLE IX 
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND CONFIDENTIALITY 

 
9.01. Conflict of lnterest. 
 

 (a) Consultant represents that it is familiar with Sections 1090, et seq., and Section, 87100, et 
seq., of the California Government Code, and that it does not know of any facts that constitute a 
violation of said sections. If, following execution of this Agreement, Consultant becomes aware 
of any such facts, whether presently existing or after-arising, Consultant shall promptly inform 
DWA of same, along with a proposal for remedying the violation. DWA may determine whether 
the proposal, or any other proposed resolution, is satisfactory, in its sole discretion.  
 
(b) Consultant represents that it has completely disclosed to DWA, and if applicable will disclose 
in the future, all facts bearing upon any possible interests, direct or indirect, which Consultant 
believes any member of DWA, or other officer, agent or employee of DWA or any department 
presently has, or will have, in this Agreement, or in the performance thereof, or in any portion 
of the profits thereunder. The failure to make such disclosure, if any, shall constitute grounds for 
termination of this Agreement by DWA for cause.  

(c) Consultant covenants that it presently has no interest, and shall not have any interest, direct 
or indirect, which would conflict in any manner with the performance of services required under 
this Agreement. Without limitation, Consultant represents to and agrees with DWA that 
Consultant has no present, and will have no future, conflict of interest between providing DWA 
the services hereunder and any interest Consultant may presently have, or will have in the 
future, with respect to any other person or entity (including, but not limited to, any federal or 
state regulatory agency) which has any interest adverse or potentially adverse to DWA, as 
determined in the reasonable judgment of DWA. The provisions of this section shall remain fully 
effective indefinitely after termination of services to DWA hereunder. 

 
ARTICLE X 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

10.01. Notices. Any notice to be given by any Party hereunder must be given in writing and 
delivered in person, or by reputable nationwide overnight courier or forwarded by certified or registered 
United States mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or through electronic mail with read 



9 

 

receipt at the address indicated below, unless the party giving such notice is been notified in writing, 
change of address: 

Desert Water Agency 
Attn: Mark Krause 
1200 Gene Autry Trail 
Palm Springs, CA 92263-1710 
mkrause@dwa.org 
 
JTN Energy, LLC 
Attn: Todd Thorner 
59 Yorkshire Drive 
Oakland, CA 94618 
tthorner@jtn-energy.com  

 
Any such notices shall be effective on the date such notice is delivered, if notice is given by 

personal delivery, overnight courier or electronic mail; or if such notice is sent through the United States 
mail, on the date of actual delivery as shown by the addressee's receipt; or expiration of three (3) days 
following the date of mailing, whichever first occurs.  

10.02. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement shall be ruled invalid, illegal or 
unenforceable, the Parties shall: (a) promptly negotiate a substitute for the provision which shall, to the 
greatest extent legally permissible, reflect the intent of the parties in the invalid, illegal or unenforceable 
provision, and (b) negotiate such changes in, substitutions for or additions to the remaining provisions of 
this Agreement as maybe necessary in addition to and in conjunction with clause (a) to give effect to the 
intent of the Parties without the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision. To the extent the Parties are 
unable to negotiate such changes, substitutions or additions as set forth in the preceding sentence, and 
the intent of the Parties with respect to the essential terms of the Agreement may be carried out 
without the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision, the balance of this Agreement shall not be 
affected, and this Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if the invalid, illegal or unenforceable 
provision does not exist. 

10.03. Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed and delivered in any number of 
counterparts, each of which when signed and delivered shall be an original, but all of which shall 
together constitute one and the same Agreement. 

10.04. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the Parties 
with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement and any agreement or representation with respect 
to the same. 

mailto:mkrause@dwa.org
mailto:tthorner@jtn-energy.com


10 

 

10.05. Notification. If Consultant becomes aware of a matter that could impact the quality or 
quantity of work, services, or the level of performance under this Agreement, the Consultant must 
notify the DWA in accordance with Section 10.01. 

10.06. Amendment. This Agreement may not be amended except by a subsequent writing 
signed by the Parties. 

10.07. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California. 
The Parties agree that the contract is to be performed in Riverside County, and that any action or 
proceeding to enforce or relating to this Agreement shall be brought exclusively in either Riverside 
County Superior Court. 

10.08. Attorneys' Fees and Costs.  In any judicial or other  proceeding arising out of or related to 
this Agreement or the Services provided hereunder, the prevailing party shall recover all reasonable 
costs incurred pertaining to such proceeding, including reasonable costs and fees of attorneys or other 
professionals. 

10.09. Compliance. All work, labor and materials shall be done and provided in strict conformity 
with each of the following: (a) all laws, ordinances, codes, rules, regulations and standard specifications 
of governmental authorities having jurisdiction over Consultant's work; (b) this Agreement; and (c) the 
schedule attached hereto. Consultant shall also comply, at Consultant's expense, with all requirements 
of inspectors of any governmental authority having jurisdiction over Consultant's work. 

10.10. Disputes. If any disputes should arise between the Parties concerning the work to be 
performed under this Agreement, or the manner of accomplishment of the work, Consultant shall 
nevertheless proceed to perform the work as directed by DWA pending settlement of the dispute. If a 
dispute arises over payment, Consultant reserves the right to stop working until such dispute is settled. 
Consultant will not suspend working unless such dispute is substantial and will make all reasonable 
efforts to avoid such a situation. 

10.11. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, nothing in 
this Agreement shall operate to confer rights or benefits on persons or entities not party to this 
Agreement. 

10.12. Statutes of Limitation. As between the Parties to this Agreement, any applicable statute 
of limitations for any act or failure to act shall commence to run on the date of DWA's issuance of the 
final certificate for payment, or termination of this Agreement, whichever is earlier. 

10.13. Cooperation. Consultant and DWA shall cooperate in the performance of work with each 
other and all other agents. 

10.14. DWA's Approval. Consultant shall not assign or subcontract any portion of the work to be 
performed under this Agreement or any of the rights or obligations under this Agreement, without the 
prior written consent of DWA, which consent may be withheld in DWA's reasonable discretion. Any 



11 

 

attempted assignment in violation of the provisions of this paragraph shall be void ab initio. Subject to 
the foregoing, this Agreement shall be binding upon the heirs, administrators, successors and assigns of 
DWA and Consultant. 

10.15. Independent Contractor. Consultant shall at all times be deemed an independent 
contractor wholly responsible for the manner in which it performs the Services, and fully liable for the 
acts and omissions of its employees, subconsultants and agents. Under no circumstances shall this 
Agreement be construed as creating an employment, agency, joint venture or partnership relationship 
between DWA and Consultant, and no such relationship shall be implied from performance of this 
Agreement. Terms in this Agreement referring to direction from DWA shall be construed as providing for 
direction as to policy and the result of services only, and not as to means and methods by which such a 
result is obtained. Consultant shall pay all taxes (including California sales and use taxes) levied upon this 
Agreement, the transaction, or the Services and/or goods delivered pursuant hereto without additional 
compensation, for which Consultant is responsible under applicable law and any deficiency, interest or 
penalty assessed with respect thereto. 

10.16. Subconsultants. Consultant shall perform the services using the personnel and 
subconsultants listed in Consultant’s Proposal to Provide Consulting Service Related to the Snow Creek 
hydroelectric project commissioned In February 2, 1988. Consultant shall hire only qualified persons or 
firms who are experienced in performing work of like nature and complexity to the services, and who 
agree to be bound to the terms of the Agreement to the extent of this Scope of Services. Consultant may 
substitute personnel or subconsultants prior to any such subconsultants commencing work only upon 
DWA's written consent, which may be withheld or delayed in DWA's reasonable discretion.   

 

10.17. Non-Discrimination. Consultant shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant 
for employment, nor against any subconsultant or applicant for a subcontract, because of race, color, 
religious creed, age, sex, actual or perceived sexual orientation, national origin, disability as defined by 
the Americans with Disabilities Act or veteran's status. To the extent applicable, Consultant shall comply 
with all federal, state and local laws (including, without limitation, County ordinances, rules and 
regulations) regarding nondiscrimination, equal employment opportunity, affirmative action and 
occupational-safety-health concerns, shall comply with all applicable rules and regulations thereunder, 
and shall comply with same as each may be amended from time to time. Consultant shall provide all 
information reasonably requested by DWA to verify compliance with such matters. Consultant 
stipulates, acknowledges, and agrees that DWA has the right to monitor Consultant's compliance with 
all applicable non-discrimination requirements, and may impose sanctions upon a finding of a willful, 
knowing or bad faith noncompliance or submission of information known or suspected to be false or 
misleading. 

10.18. Not liable for damages. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in no 
event shall either Party be liable, regardless of whether any claim is based on contract or tort, for any 



12 

 

special, consequential, indirect or incidental damages, including, but not limited to, lost profits or 
revenue, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement or the Scope of Services performed in 
connection with this Agreement. 

10.19. Level of Efforts. Consultant recognizes the relations of trust and confidence that are 
established by this Agreement, and covenants with the DWA to furnish its reasonable skill and 
judgment, and to actively cooperate and assist in furthering the best interests of the DWA in all matters 
pertaining to completing the Scope of Services. Consultant agrees to furnish efficient business 
administration and capable supervision, and to use reasonable efforts to keep upon the work an 
adequate supply of workmen and materials in order to secure its execution in an expeditious and 
economical manner consistent with the DWA's best interests. Consultant represents and warrants that it 
has qualifications, experience and facilities necessary to properly perform the services required under 
this Agreement in a thorough, complete and professional manner. Consultant's employees assigned to 
the work shall at all times be reasonably satisfactory to the DWA. 

10.20. Time is of the Essence. Time shall be of the essence as to all dates and times of 
performance contained in this Agreement. 

10.21. Authority to Execute. 

(a) Each Party represents and warrants that all necessary action has been taken by such 
Party to authorize the undersigned to execute this Agreement and to bind each Party to the 
performance of its obligations hereunder. 

(b) Each individual executing this Agreement hereby represents and warrants that he or 
she has the full power and authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the named Parties. 

 
 
 

  



13 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement, effective as of the latest date below. 
 
 
     Desert Water Agency 

     By_________________________________ 

     Its_________________________________ 

     Date_______________________________ 

      

JTN Energy 

     By_________________________________ 

     Its_________________________________ 

     Date_______________________________ 

 



14 

 

 Exhibit “A” 
Scope of Services 

 
The following is a detailed Scope of Services describing the specific Work Tasks JTN will complete in each 
of three service categories.  This Scope of Services also identifies the result, product, or milestone for 
each Work Task and identifies how JTN will interface with DWA on each Task. This Scope of Services is 
taken directly from JTN’s contract with DWA related to the Whitewater project of December 22, 2014. 
but amended to cap the proposed fee structure and to reflect that fact that the Snow Creek project 
nameplate is below 500 kW and thus not subject to CAISO regulation. 
 
Under this Scope of Services, JTN will provide consulting services to DWA related to the Snow Creek 
hydroelectric project (the “Project”) in the three following service categories:  
 

A. Secure ReMAT Contract - JTN will secure for the Project a new, attractive long-term power 
sales agreement, a Renewable Market Adjusting Tariff (ReMAT) contract with SCE. JTN will 
target submission of a Program Participation Request (PPR) to SCE to participate in Program 
Period 14 closing on March 1, 2016. JTN expects SCE will offer DWA a ReMAT contract in the 
near term which likely will be executable by mid 2014. This activity is further described 
under Task A1 below.  

 
B. Transition Activities - JTN will manage and assist DWA to complete all the transition 

activities required to deliver power in the post Standard Offer contract environment and to 
begin deliveries under the new ReMAT contract. These activities will be initiated promptly 
after execution of this Agreement and are targeted for completion by March 2018 (28 
month duration) so the Project can begin deliveries under the ReMAT contract. These 
activities are further described under Tasks B1 - B7 below. 

 
C. Contract Management / Short-Term - In coordination with DWA, JTN will directly manage 

the new ReMAT contract obligations for the first 13 months of the ReMAT contract. JTN will 
work with DWA to develop operational and management protocols and provide training as 
needed to ensure the ReMAT is diligently managed and commercial risks mitigated. These 
activities are further described under Task C1 below.  

 
D. Contract Management / Long-Term - continuation of services described under C. above but 

starting from 13 months after delivery begins under the ReMAT contract and continuing on 
until the ReMAT contract expires, unless earlier terminated by either party. DWA’s election 
to procure Contract Management Services for the long-term must be made at least three (3) 
months prior to the Rollover Date. 

 
JTN’s Project Manager for all the work will be Todd Thorner. The work for all Work Tasks will be 
conducted by both of JTN’s principals, Todd Thorner and Mark Henwood. Below JTN identifies the 
specific sub-tasks on which JTN will utilize our subconsultants, either Michael Boas of CA Grid 
Consultants or Don Moss of HAI. 
 
 
 
 



15 

 

Task A1 - Secure ReMAT Contract 
 

Depending on how quickly this agreement can put into place, JTN will target submission of a Program 
Participation Request (PPR) to SCE to participate in Program Period 14 closing on March 1, 2016. DWA 
will pay the anticipated $702.00 PPR application fee. JTN anticipates SCE will offer a ReMAT contract for 
execution no earlier than May 2016 and as late as July 2016.  
 

Scope of Work 
 

1. Collect all contracts, drawings, data, leases, and other information from DWA required to 
compile the PPR, develop workarounds where necessary, 

2. Compile and complete a conforming PPR, 
3. Submit and advance the PPR through SCE’s competitive ReMAT process serving as DWA’s 

agent, 
4. Analyze the Project’s historical production and negotiate with SCE to secure zero or near 

zero Guaranteed Energy Production value,  
5. Review and explain the commercial and contract management aspects of the ReMAT 

contract with DWA, support DWA to achieve executed contract. 
 
To perfect the ReMAT contract, DWA must post contract collateral with SCE in the amount of $20/kW, 
or $7,220, within 30 days of ReMAT contract execution.  This collateral will be held in escrow and earn 
interest until it is returned at the end of the contract term. The product or objective of Task A1 is a fully 
executed ReMAT contract for the Project.  
 
The commercial operation date (COD) to begin deliveries under the ReMAT contract (“ReMAT COD”) can 
be set by DWA at any time after all the transition requirements have been completed and up to a 
maximum of 24 months from the ReMAT contract execution date. JTN will propose in the PPR a ReMAT 
COD of February 2, 2018 to immediately follow the 30 year expiration of the current Standard Offer 
contract and avoid any operational or revenue gap. The contract transition activities are extensive and 
time consuming, but given the 28 month lead time, JTN is confident it can complete these activities, 
detailed in Tasks B1 - B7 below, in time for February 2018 ReMAT COD. 
 
Regarding Guaranteed Energy Production (GEP), as discussed JTN is confident it can secure a zero, or 
very low, GEP value in the SCE ReMAT contract, especially given the precedent of having secured a zero 
GEP for DWA’s Whitewater ReMAT contract. JTN understands that DWA must understand, analyze, and 
assess the potential liability of any non-zero GEP before it can commit to moving forward with a ReMAT 
contract. This GEP level cannot be known with certainty without submitting a full PPR and perfecting it 
with payment of the bid fee. Accordingly, JTN and DWA agree that DWA has the option to discontinue 
the recontracting effort if the final GEP is deemed in DWA’s sole discretion to represent too high a risk. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



16 

 

Task B1 - Transition Work Checklist 
 
JTN will develop a Transition Checklist that lists all the activities, agencies/recipients, and due dates to 
successfully transition the existing Project to begin production under the ReMAT contract.  
 

Scope of Work 
 
1. Develop checklist, milestone table, timeline, and project tracking system to ensure details 

are captured and that appropriate agencies and specific tasks are identified and scheduled, 
2. Utilize and update the Checklist as a work tracking tool on an ongoing basis, see 

methodology section below for more details. 
 
The checklist will be driven by the requirements and timelines of the various processes, counterparts, 
and governing agencies listed in the Tasks below. The checklist will reflect the latest regulatory changes 
and updates as of the date the work is kicked off. For example, the California Independent System 
Operator (CAISO) has issued an updated version of their New Resource Implementation Guide which 
makes some important changes to the order of key CAISO transition activities.  
 
The product of Task B1 will be a Microsoft Project or Excel file that sets out all required transition 
activities by start date, expected duration, precedent and dependent activities, interim objectives and 
the project team member lead on specific sub-tasks. A draft will be provided to DWA for review and 
finalization in coordination with JTN. This work will be completed by JTN’s principals. 
 

Task B2 - Secure SGIA 
 
Manage and engage with DWA and SCE to develop and secure a Small Generator Interconnection 
Agreement (SGIA) for the Project. 
 

Scope of Work 
 

1. Work with DWA to understand the scope and attributes of the Project, 
2. Contact SCE and negotiate the required SGIA to complete the Qualified Facility (QF) 

conversion process, 
3. Within 10 calendar days of award of consulting contract, initiate negotiations with SCE to 

secure a new SGIA under their affidavit process, 
4. Work to speed the process while limiting any new or additional costs charged by SCE to 

DWA if possible. 
 
JTN will initiate work with SCE to negotiate and secure a Small Generator Interconnection Agreement 
(SGIA) for the Project. The Project’s current interconnection agreement is the Special Facilities exhibit to 
existing Standard Offer Agreement. When the Standard Offer Agreement expires or is terminated, the 
interconnection rights also terminate, thus the need to work through the process of securing a new, 
separate SGIA with SCE for the Project.  
 
JTN's experience with other recent Standard Offer transition projects is that the project should qualify 
for the “affidavit process” which is part of the CAISO tariff under section 25.1.2. Once accepted into this 
process, DWA will not have to pay for or wait in the interconnection queue or participate in the usual 



17 

 

interconnection cluster process. Typically an SGIA can be secured without incurring significant hard costs 
charges by the Interconnect Utility, i.e. SCE.  As the project nameplate is less than 1 MW, the Project 
should not face any telemetering requirements by SCE. If any engineering or technical work is required, 
JTN will manage selection of a contractor and their performance of the work, but DWA will be 
responsible for the cost of the contractor(s) and associated equipment/communications, if any. 
 
JTN will work closely with SCE to suggest ways for DWA to limit the milestone list within the SGIA and 
requirement to only utilize those that are necessary to expedite processing and issuance of the SGIA. 
JTN will also work diligently to prevent or mitigate any costs that SCE might seek to charge to DWA. JTN 
will require assistance from DWA to identify all DWA owned and SCE owned equipment in the generator 
and adjoining switchyard. JTN anticipates working with DWA to develop and/or locate needed drawings 
and documentation. Documents will need to be signed by DWA as the owner/operator of the Project. 
JTN’s principals will conduct the work to secure the SGIAs and will depend on DWA support to provide 
technical specifications or drawings as needed. 
 

Task B3 - CAISO Compliance 
 
As the project nameplate is less than 500 kW, the Project is exempt from CAISO jurisdiction. As such, the 
Project does not need to join the CAISO, need not install CAISO metering, and is not subject to the CAISO 
tariff. These facts should significantly mitigate the level of effort and cost involved the transition the 
project from its Standard Offer power sales contract to a new ReMAT contract. JTN will work with SCE to 
ensure the Project meets all regulatory requirements and address any CAISO interface issues that may 
arise during the transition period. 
 
 Task B4 - FERC Compliance 
 
JTN will manage DWA’s compliance with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) requirement 
for the sale of renewable energy per ReMAT PPA Section 4.8.   FERC allows projects to self-certify, 
without a filing fee, for QF status and obtaining a resulting QF docket number.  If DWA has not already 
secured a FERC QF ID that can be used for these purposes, JTN will prepare the necessary FERC Form 
556, e-file the form, and obtain the required docket number.   
 
 Task B5 - CEC Compliance 
 
JTN will manage DWA’s registration and compliance with the California Energy Commission (CEC) 
Renewable Portfolio Standard (RPS) registration per ReMAT PPA Section 4.5.  
 

Scope of Work 
 

1. Gather all documentation that has been submitted, if any, for certification to CEC for the 
Project and review to complete further documentation as needed for compliance with the 
CEC RPS program, 

2. Contact the CEC to determine what outstanding information, if any, is needed for the 
Project and submit documentation as required for certification, 

3. Complete the CEC process, complete forms, and perform a compliance analysis prior to start 
dates in existing ReMAT feed in tariff requirements, 



18 

 

4. Deliver to DWA all required forms and reports filed with CEC and a completed compliance 
assessment which will ultimately include the RPS Certificate. 

 
The CEC process requires compilation of information required to satisfy the latest edition of the RPS 
Eligibility Guidebook, preparation of an application, and submittal of the application to the CEC.  
Resubmittal or provision of additional information is occasionally required.  JTN will perform this process 
for the Project on behalf of DWA. The result of this work task will be a CEC RPS Certification Certificate 
which must be provided to SCE to begin delivering under the ReMAT. Pre-certification is not required for 
operational QF projects like Snow Creek. 
 
 Task B6 - WREGIS Compliance 
 
JTN will manage DWA’s registration and compliance with the Western Renewable Energy Generator 
Information System (WREGIS) per ReMAT PPA Section 4.3 & 4.4.  
 

Scope of Work 
 

1. Collect and review necessary documentation to register DWA and the Project with WREGIS.   
2. Review the Qualified Reporting Entity (QRE) requirements with DWA for generation 

reporting to WREGIS.  Since the CAISO will be performing the project metering, the CAISO 
will act as the QRE for the project. 

3. Develop tracking and reporting system to ensure that ongoing WREGIS requirements are 
met by DWA. 
 

Participation in the WREGIS system is mandatory under the ReMAT contract and is a two step process.  
The first step is registration of DWA and establishment of an account with WREGIS.  The second step is 
registration of individual generation projects and receipt of WREGIS Generating Unit ID numbers.   
 
JTN will prepare and file the necessary forms on behalf of DWA and work with WREGIS until the 
registration is deemed complete and the online system is properly configured and operational.  JTN does 
not anticipate any additional material input required from DWA, other than DWA paying the required 
registration fees. The result of this task will be that the Project will be registered with WREGIS. 
Additional tasks required post ReMAT COD (Task C1) include finalizing generating unit registration and 
setting up Forward Certificate Transfers for the Project so that RECs generated under the ReMAT 
contracts are delivered timely to SCE to avoid penalties (per ReMAT Section 4.3.5).  
 
 
 Task B7 - SCE ReMAT Coordination & Filings 
 
JTN will work with DWA to gather, compile, and submit timely all documentation SCE requires before 
DWA’ Snow Creek project can begin to deliver power under the ReMAT contract. This work will involve 
significant coordination efforts between JTN and DWA and cover the full range of transition activities. 
 

Scope of Work 
 

1. Progress Reporting - file reports with SCE (required monthly), 



19 

 

2. File with appropriate SCE party the various certifications and documentation related to 
Tasks above (CAISO, FERC, CEC, and WREGIS),  

3. Demonstrated Contract Capacity - coordinate with DWA the schedule for Contract Capacity 
Tests for the Project, provide notice to SCE per ReMAT, and coordinate process to ensure 
the Project meets ReMAT requirements (per ReMAT Section 3 and Appendix M),  

4. ReMAT COD - file notice and updates to notice if and when ReMAT COD changes, 
5. Scheduling - work with SCE prior to ReMAT COD to provide CAISO Resource IDs and set up 

scheduling functions through SCE’s Power Procurement Information Center (PPIC), 
6. Work with SCE for SCE to provide temporary QRE services during the transition period after 

REMAT COD and when the CAISO will provide this function. 
7. Billing - file or coordinate filing of tax and bank wiring instructions,  
8. Insurance - coordinate with DWA and its insurer to provide SCE or their insurance contractor 

required insurance certificates, 
9. Financing & Consents - as needed assist with any Consent to Assignments required for 

project financing or structuring, 
 

JTN will coordinate these activities efficiently and will seek to reduce the work load on DWA to 
maximum extent reasonable. The result of this Task B7 will be that all of these requirements will be 
completed timely so that these noticing and filing requirements do not prevent DWA’s Snow Creek 
project from delivery of power under the ReMAT contract immediately upon expiration of its Standard 
Offer Agreement.   
 
 Task C1 - Manage ReMAT Contract / Short-Term 
 
In coordination with DWA, JTN will directly manage the new ReMAT contract obligations beginning two 
months before ReMAT COD and running thirteen (13) months after the ReMAT COD, total fifteen (15) 
month duration. The Project’s existing Standard Offer agreement will complete its 30 year term on 
February 1, 2018, it is anticipated that the ReMAT COD will commence the next day on February 2, 2018. 
Accordingly it is anticipated the short-term ReMAT services will commence on December 2, 2017 and 
run for fifteen (15) months to finish on April 1, 2019 (the Rollover Date).  
 
JTN will serve as primary interface with SCE, CAISO, and WREGIS and work diligently to protect DWA’s 
interests in all matters related to the ReMAT contract. JTN will manage issues related to scheduling, 
forecasting, invoicing, CAISO and WREGIS compliance as detailed below. This work is anticipated to 
begin in December 2017, approximately two months before the anticipated ReMAT COD and run for 15 
months to April 2019, 13 months after the anticipated ReMAT COD. 
 
JTN anticipates working closely with the Project's on-site operational staff, especially in the early months 
of the ReMAT contract since some changes in operational procedures and reporting may be needed to 
comply with the requirements of the ReMAT contract. Before the Rollover Date, JTN will provide DWA a 
copy of a Procedures Manual which details the best practices for integrating management of the project 
and the contract. This Procedures Manual may be useful for DWA training or staff turnover or in the 
case one or the other Party terminates the ongoing Contract Management Services. 
 
The JTN fee for these services up through 13 months after the ReMAT COD is rolled into the JTN 
deferred fee structure. The services are described in more detail below. 
 



20 

 

 Scheduling 
 
JTN will manage the scheduling of project output through SCE’s web interface and backup scheduling 
methods when SCE's web system is down. JTN will need to work with and train DWA on-site operations 
personnel to ensure that project operational daily logging methodology is reviewed and updated as 
needed to be compliant with logging and scheduling requirements in the ReMAT contract. In addition, 
JTN will work with DWA to set appropriate staffing and communication protocols to ensure scheduling is 
completed timely in conformance with operational staff input. JTN will seek to minimize DWA’s work 
load to the degree feasible while still complying with the ReMAT scheduling requirements.  
 
 Settlements 
 
JTN will establish a methodology and basic software tools for downloading and screening meter data 
from the project for quality assurance/quality control (QA/QC). JTN will help establish templates for 
invoices that can utilize CAISO meter data as downloaded and meet the requirements of the ReMAT 
contract. 
 
 Inspections & Reporting 
 
For annual project inspection, JTN will propose a third party contractor to be approved by DWA and will 
assist with coordination and reporting to SCE as required under the ReMAT. 
 
 CAISO Management 
 
JTN will develop a schedule and checklist for all ongoing CAISO management activities and ensure all the 
activities are completed. The checklist and activities will be compiled in the Procedures Manual to be 
provided to DWA. 
 
 WREGIS Management 
 
JTN will complete the annual certification process for the Project at the end of the first year of 
operations under the ReMAT contract.  JTN will also work with DWA to reconcile any discrepancies in 
Renewable Energy Credit (REC) formation and transfers to SCE. These events are not uncommon and 
under the ReMAT can result in significant penalties if not diligently managed.   
 
 
 CEC/EIA/FERC Reporting 
 
Based on discussions with DWA, JTN understands that DWA is already meeting these requirements and 
no JTN involvement is required.  
 

Task D1 - Manage ReMAT Contract / Long-Term 
 

Task D is to continue Task C activities to coordinate with DWA and directly manage the ReMAT contract 
obligations, but starting on the Rollover Date, 13 months after ReMAT COD, and continuing for the term 
of the ReMAT contract, or until terminated by either DWA or JTN. This scope of services is offered by 
JTN and can be elected at DWA’s discretion no later than 90 days before the Rollover Date. 



21 

 

 
As detailed above in Task C, JTN will serve as primary interface with SCE, CAISO, and WREGIS and work 
diligently to protect DWA’s interests in all matters related to the ReMAT contract over time, even as 
power markets and regulatory frameworks and requirements change. 
 
The Contract Management services will be terminable by either party on an annual basis, for example in 
case DWA decides at some point to take over these activities or to hire some other firm to conduct this 
work. Notice of termination must be provided 90 days prior the Rollover Date or subsequent 
anniversaries of the Rollover Date. 
 
The fee for JTN’s services is not included in JTN’s success contingent deferred fee. Instead JTN will 
charge an annual fee for these contract management services to be paid quarterly in advance, per 
Exhibit “B” below. 



22 

 

Exhibit “B” 
Payment and Milestone Schedule 

 
Fee Structure 
 

JTN will provide the consulting services described in Exhibit “A” Scope of Services on a success 
contingent, deferred payment basis. Under this structure, DWA will not pay any upfront or progress 
payments while JTN is working on service category (A) to Secure the ReMAT Contract (Task A1) or to 
complete service category (B) Transition Activities (Tasks B1 - B7). Instead, JTN will defer payment for 
more than two years and will be paid a small share of revenues DWA receives under the ReMAT contract 
once the Project begins delivering output, anticipated to be in February 2018. The first fifteen (15) 
months of service category (C) Contract Management (Task C1) is included in JTN’s success contingent, 
deferred fee. Ongoing Contract Management services after the initial 15 month period, after the 
Rollover Date, (Task D) will be charged on an annual basis and are separate from the success contingent, 
deferred fee for work (Tasks A, B, and C) up to the Rollover Date.  
 
JTN will cover all its own costs including the time of JTN’s principals and staff, their related travel, per-
diem, office, telephone communication, reproduction, shipping, and similar expenses. JTN will also cover 
out of pocket expenses for fees to pay subconsultants as identified in Exhibit “A” to assist in Task B3. 
For reference and potentially payment of fees in case of Termination, JTN estimates its total loaded soft 
and hard cost to provide these consulting services is $85,890 (see Table 1). DWA will be responsible for 
all other third party hard costs including ReMAT bid fees, ReMAT contract collateral, interconnection 
facilities, communication circuits and equipment, switchgear modifications and related construction, 
meters, metering installation and testing, and third party consultants, WREGIS fees, and CAISO and CEC 
fees (if any). JTN estimates the total cost for these expenses is approximately $11,192 (see Table 2). 
 
 Fee Level 
 
JTN’s success contingent, deferred fee of the consulting services proposed here for a 20 year ReMAT 
contract will be 2.0 cents/kilowatt-hour (c/kWh) for the 20 year term of the ReMAT contract.  Given the 
anticipated ReMAT pricing is 8.92 c/kWh, DWA is expected to be receive an average price of 
approximately 6.92 c/kWh net of JTN fees. These fees are unit contingent and only payable if the Project 
is operating and selling power to SCE under the ReMAT contract. This fee level is based on the historical 
average annual production of the facility at 576,882 kWh per year (full years 1988 - 2014). Given the 
possibility that the operating regime for the Project may be changed in the future resulting in higher 
production levels, the fee is capped for the term of this agreement at the maximum historical annual 
production which was 1,261,474 kWh in 1998. JTN’s power marketing related fee will accordingly be 
capped and never exceed (2 c/kWh x 1,261,474 kWh =) $25,229 per year, even if the plant generates at 
significantly higher levels of production. 
 
The fee for Contract Management services for the first thirteen (13) months of operations under the 
ReMAT contract (up to the Rollover Date) is included in the above success contingent, deferred fee. The 
fee for Contract Management services after the Rollover Date will be $12,750 per year subject to an 
annual adjustment proportional to the increase or decrease in the US Department of Labor’s Bureau of 
Labor Statistics Consumer Price Index for Urban Water Earners and Clerical Workers in Los Angeles-
Riverside-Orange County, CA.  The annual fee will be paid in four equal quarterly installments, in 
advance, starting on the Rollover Date for as long as the contract continues and JTN provides the 



23 

 

contract management services. This contract management fee is separate from the success contingent 
power marketing fee and accordingly not subject to the annual cap on the power marketing fee. 
 
 Invoicing & Payment 
 
Unless this Agreement is terminated, JTN will submit no invoices and DWA will owe no amounts until 
after the Snow Creek project begins delivery to SCE under the ReMAT contract. Commencing with the 
ReMAT COD and for as long as the Project delivers under the ReMAT contract with SCE, DWA will make 
monthly Deferred Fee Payments to JTN.  For as long as JTN is providing service category (C) Contract 
Management services, JTN will submit a single invoice to DWA on a monthly basis, for both success 
contingent, deferred fee and ongoing contract management fees when they become applicable after the 
Rollover Date.   

JTN’s Deferred Fee Payment will be calculated based on power generated by the Project in a given 
month, if any. For as long as JTN is providing service category (C) Contract Management services, JTN 
will submit a detailed and accurate invoice to DWA after completing the monthly settlement functions 
for managing the ReMAT contract with SCE. JTN’s invoice will include data necessary to check the 
calculation of JTN’s monthly fee, if any. Request for payment for Contract Management services after 
the Rollover Date will be invoiced quarterly (every three months) and rolled into the monthly invoicing 
cycle for deferred fees to consolidate invoicing into a single monthly invoice. The Invoices shall be 
supported by such data substantiating JTN's right to payment as the DWA may reasonably require.  
 
To provide time for monthly settlements and invoicing and to integrate with DWA’s invoicing and 
settlement practices, JTN will endeavor to submit invoices to DWA no later than the 20th day of the 
month following the month for which the deferred fee applies. DWA will upon approval make payment 
by the 20th day of the month following the month in which the request for payment was made. DWA 
may withhold a portion of an invoiced payment because of defective work not remedied or because of 
unsatisfactory work performed by Consultant. When the foregoing grounds are removed by Consultant, 
payment shall be made for amounts withheld because of them.  
 
If the Agreement is terminated, JTN will issue an invoice within 15 days to DWA for work completed per 
the provisions below. DWA will pay such amounts due within 30 days. If the Contract Management 
services are terminated by either Party on or after the Rollover Date, DWA or its designee will monthly 
calculate and send an accounting with payment to JTN of the Deferred Fee Payment, if any, without JTN 
needing to present an invoice. The Deferred Fee payment will include a copy of the associated SCE 
invoices issued to and paid on by SCE along with DWA’s computation of the amount of the Deferred Fee 
Payment. 
 

Change Orders 
 
Upon mutual agreement of DWA and the JTN, the Parties may put in place Change Orders per Section 
1.02 of this Agreement for additional scope of services which seek to achieve milestones not included in 
the original Scope of Services. Consultant will charge its loaded rate of $210/hour for JTN’s principals, 
Mark Henwood and Todd Thorner. Subcontractors Don Moss of HAI and Michael Boas of CA Grid 
Consultants will be available at an hourly rate of $150/hour. Any other subcontractors will be billed at 
mutually agreed rates.  
 



24 

 

Termination 
 
If DWA terminates the Agreement for convenience, JTN will be paid for services satisfactorily performed 
up to the termination date and will be due no additional costs, damages or expenses. Invoices for 
payment of the services will be capped by the cost estimates provided in Table 1 below. For Tasks that 
have been completed under service categories (B) Transition Services and (C) Contract Management, the 
charge will be the cost of the specific Task listed in the ‘Total’ column. For Tasks that have been started 
but not yet completed, JTN will invoice a percent completion of the cost in the ‘Total’ column of the 
partially completed Task.  
 
If DWA terminates the Agreement for breach, JTN will be paid only for Tasks satisfactorily completed by 
the termination date. JTN will not invoice and DWA will not owe any amounts for Tasks that have been 
started but not yet completed. For Tasks that have been completed under service categories (B) 
Transition Services and (C) Contract Management, the charge will be the cost of the specific Task listed 
in the ‘Total’ column. If JTN succeeds in having a SCE ReMAT contract offered for the Project but DWA 
elects in its sole discretion not to sign the contract and move forward, the payment will be $15,120 if 
the Guaranteed Energy Production (GEP) value is zero and $7,560 if the GEP is a non-zero value. 
 
If JTN terminates the Agreement for convenience before the Rollover Date, JTN will not be paid for any 
work started or completed. If JTN terminates for convenience on the Rollover Date or later, JTN will 
invoice and DWA will pay the full annual fee for Contract Management services through the date the 
services are provided. If JTN terminates for breach, JTN will invoice and DWA will pay for all services 
satisfactorily performed up to the termination date. 
 
Table 1: Estimate of JTN Loaded Costs to Rollover Date 

  

 
 
 

Estimate of DWA Hard Costs 
 
For DWA’s reference in considering the overall scope of work, costs, and JTN fee structure, in Table 2 
below JTN provides below our best estimate of hard costs DWA is likely to incur while working with JTN 



25 

 

to secure and begin delivery under the ReMAT contract. Note the total cost estimate is only about 20% 
of the total estimate for Whitewater. ReMAT related fees (Items 1 & 2) have been updated to reflect the 
actual nameplate capacity of 361 kW, but are only about 1/3 of ReMAT costs for Whitewater. More 
importantly, given project is not subject to CAISO jurisdiction, CAISO costs, both soft and hard costs 
(Items 3, 4, & %) have been nearly eliminated. Also note that Item 2, the contract collateral payment of 
$7,220, will be refunded to DWA with interest after the ReMAT contract expires. The costs to be 
incurred over the 28+ months to ReMAT COD are estimated to be approximately $11,192. 
 
Table 2: JTN Estimate of DWA Hard Costs 
 

 
 
 
 

 



7-E 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
 
 

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
JANUARY 5, 2016 

 
 
RE: REQUEST AUTHORIZATION TO EXECUTE COMPENSATION 

AGREEMENTS FOR THE TRANSFER OF THE CITY HALL ANNEX 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 11875 & 11999 PALM DRIVE AND FOR THE 
TRANSFER OF THE CITY CORPORATE YARD EXPANSION 
PROPERTY LOCATED ON CHOLLA DRIVE TO THE CITY OF DESERT 
HOT SPRINGS 

 
 
The City of Desert Hot Springs has requested that Desert Water Agency execute two 
compensation agreements required for the transfer of property (“City Hall Annex 
Property” and “City Corporate Yard Expansion Property”) from the dissolved Desert Hot 
Springs Redevelopment Agency to the City of Desert Hot Springs.  The City of Desert 
Hot Springs is the Successor Agency to the dissolved Redevelopment Agency.  The 
transfer is in accordance with the Redevelopment Agency’s Long-Range Property 
Management Plan (LRPMP) which was formally approved by the California Department 
of Finance.   In accordance with the LRPMP the City Hall Annex Property and the City 
Corporate Yard Expansion Property  will be transferred to the City at no cost.   
 
DWA received taxes through the Desert Hot Springs Redevelopment Agency between 
the years 2009-2012.  The taxes were passed through under statutory pass through 
regulations.  DWA’s financial impact resulting from the execution of the compensation 
agreements is negligible. 
 
Staff recommends that the Board  execute said compensation agreements for 
approximately 1.13 acres of improved land located at 11875 and 11999 Palm Drive, 
(APN’s 639-252-018, -019, 041 and 042) and approximately 0.90 acres of unimproved 
land located on Cholla Drive (APN’s 663-320-009 and -011), both in the City of Desert 
Hot Springs,  more particularly described in Chapter IV, Property to be Transferred for 
Future Development, Site Nos. 2 and 3, pages 11-17 of the LRPMP. 
 
 
  
 



sylvia
Typewritten Text
Site 2

sylvia
Typewritten Text

sylvia
Typewritten Text

sylvia
Typewritten Text





sylvia
Typewritten Text
Site 2







































sylvia
Typewritten Text
Site 3





sylvia
Typewritten Text
Site 3

























sylvia
Typewritten Text

sylvia
Typewritten Text

sylvia
Typewritten Text

sylvia
Typewritten Text
January 5, 2016













8-A 

01358.00002\23537583.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

December 29, 2015 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: GENERAL MANAGER AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF DESERT WATER AGENCY 

FROM: BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP 

RE: DECEMBER 16, 2015 MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
STATE WATER PROJECT CONTRACTORS AUTHORITY AND 
DECEMBER 17, 2015 MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
STATE WATER CONTRACTORS, INC. 

The December 16, 2015 meeting of the Board of Directors of the State Water 

Project Contractors Authority was conducted in the main conference room of the State Water 

Contractors at the Senator Hotel in downtown Sacramento.  The December 17, 2015 meeting of 

the Board of Directors of the State Water Contractors, Inc., was conducted at the Tsakopoulos 

Library Galleria in downtown Sacramento.  

1. SWPCA Board Meeting. 

The SWPCA Board meeting it was reported that discussions with the Department 

of Water Resources regarding the RFP process for conducting habitat conservation programs 

were going very well.  DWR will conduct workshop in January for potential proposers who may 

be interested in responding to the Request for Proposals once they are issued by DWR.  

However, the date of that workshop has not been calendared yet.  It is hoped that the majority of 

the Contractors will be willing to participate in “fronting” the money necessary to prepare initial 

proposals and commence work if awarded a project.  For 2016, the total projected budget is 

$750,000.00.  Another $750,000.00 is projected for 2017.  Assuming that the projects are 

awarded to the Contractors, it is expected that the progress payments from DWR thereafter will 

create a “revolving fund” sufficient to continue performing projects until all of the work is 

completed, totaling 8,000 acres of restored habitat in the Delta. 

 

 



 

 
- 2 - 

01358.00002\23537583.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

2. Proposed Water Transfer. 

At the SWC Board Meeting, the Board was asked to submit a letter to DWR in 

support of a water exchange between Antelope-Eastern Water Agency and Metropolitan Water 

District. The Proposed arrangement is an unbalanced exchanged (two for one), by which AVEK 

will provide up to 30,000 acre feet of water to Metropolitan Water District, and Metropolitan 

will return half of that quantity to AVEK within a ten (10) year period.  For the Water coming 

back to AVEK, Metropolitan will pay a set price per acre foot based upon an agreed scale tied to 

the percentage of allocation to Contractors in the year in which the water is returned.  The 

agreement would also require Metropolitan to pay the State Water Project Transportation costs to 

deliver the returned water to AVEK; or alternatively, Metropolitan may use its water previously 

stored in AVEK’s groundwater bank to repay the exchange water debt.  The SWC Board took 

action to approve the proposal.  However, DWR has indicated that it will need to look at the 

proposal very carefully to make sure that it does not conflict with provisions in the Monterey 

Amendment which prohibit the use of an exchange program as a “disguised sale” in which water 

is basically sold to another contractor, that circumventing the use of the return toll arrangement.   

3. Water Operations Report. 

The water supply report was positive for a change.  DWR was expecting a series 

of storms to roll in, through the end of the December.  Recent storms had caused the storage in 

Lake Oroville to increase by about 20,000 acre feet since the previous month.  The low point in 

Oroville was 909,000 acre feet, but as of the date of the meeting the storage in Oroville was 

930,000 acre feet (still extremely low) combined exports in the Delta were at 1,400 cubic feet per 

second.  Title intrusions had caused a lot of water quality decline in the Delta. Total storage in 

the San Louis Reservoir was at 350,000 acre feet, with 280,000 acre feet of that belonging to that 

the State Water Project and the remainder belonging to the Federal Project.  As of the date of the 

meeting, precipitation in the Northern Sierra was at 9.5 inches, which was already twenty percent 

of an average years surplus rainfall in the Northern Sierra. Storage in Oroville was at forty-three 

percent of historical average for that point in the year.  DWR was hopeful about the prospects for 

an above average year, in anticipation of the El Nino rains, but storage is alarmingly low and 

there is a lot of ground to make up.   



 

 
- 3 - 

01358.00002\23537583.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

4. Energy Report. 

Power prices continued to decline in October, driven by lower gas prices.  As of 

November 1, gas storage had hit its limit, and there was no additional room to store additional 

gas.  Since November 1, however, some of the storage had been withdrawn, and therefore, had 

been freed up.  The price of gas was at 13 year low price, which was applying downward 

pressure on power prices.  On the other hand, hydro power generation was also quite low.  Much 

of the water released from Oroville had been released through the Oroville River valves, in order 

to take advantage of “water releases”. Water release through the Oroville River valve do not run 

through the hydro power units, and therefore do not generate electricity.  In addition, the price of 

purchased power is actually higher, due to renewal energy prices, notwithstanding the all-time 

low price of gas.  Therefore, the net result is an overall higher price of energy, notwithstanding 

historically low gas prices.   

5. Temporary Urgency Change Petition.  

Due to drought conditions, DWR had submitted a Petition to the State Water 

Resources Control Board for a temporary urgency change in the permit requirements, to relax the 

normal conditions for the diversion of water from the Delta.  DWR staff had received a surprise 

letter from the State Board proposing permit conditions that would impose increased carry over 

requirements of one million acre feet in Lake Shasta and Folsom Reservoir, so that cold water 

would be retained and available to protect fish later in the year.  However, the State Contractors 

were worried about the impacts that the these storage requirements would have on releases from 

Oroville.  In other words, if water is required to be retained in Shasta, that places an additional 

demand on releases from Oroville, to the disadvantage of the State Contractors.  In light of those 

concerns, the State Board backed off from that requirement somewhat.   

6. One Year Transfers. 

Also in light of the current drought conditions, the Delta Stewardship Council had 

authorized an exemption from review for one year transfers, but reserved the right to revisit that 

exemption at a later date.  It was reported that the Delta Stewardship Council was now revisiting 

that exemption, and considering a requirement to review one year transfers instead of exempting 

such transfers from review.  However, it was reported that the Delta Stewardship Council staff 



 

 
- 4 - 

01358.00002\23537583.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

had reported to its own governing body that the review of one year transfers really was not 

needed.  Therefore, the Contractors are hopeful that the exemption for review of one year 

transfers will continue. 

7. Energy Objectives Update.  

Tim Haynes of the SWC staff provided an update on energy objectives for the 

year.  One item of note had to do with the FERC relicensing effort.  That effort is currently 

$33,000.00 under budget.  However, when the Contractors finally due receive the license, it is 

anticipated that there will be approximately one billion dollars in obligations, including required 

expenditures for ecological benefits. 

On the Greenhouse Gas initiative, the Air Resources Board and the Department of 

Finance had to place the State Water Project in the electric sector, and yet did not provide the 

SWP with the “free admission” allowances provided to other electric utilities within that sector.  

As a result, the SWP must pay for “Cap and Trade” expenses like all other consumers.  The cost 

to date have been approximately two million dollars per month.  The proposed State policy 

objectives following the year 2020 will examine how emissions can be further reduced on the 

water supply side.  Cap and Trade funds are used to fund projects that reduce carbon emissions.  

One good bit of news is that the SWP actually had received some Cap and Trade funding to help 

refurbish SWP hydro units.  

The objectives for the year also included more involvement in other 

organizational activities, such as Cal ISO.  New utilities will be added to Cal ISO as necessary to 

accommodate expanded transmission studies and facilities for renewable energy initiatives.  The 

strategy will be to build coalitions with other stake holders whose interest are aligned with the 

SWP.  To that end, the SWC Board authorized an expenditures of $20,000.00 for the SWC to 

join the California Municipal Utilities Association.  

MICHAEL T. RIDDELL 













Ending At Midnight - December 29, 2015

Graph Updated 12/30/2015 01:45 PM

LEGEND

Capacity
(TAF)

% of Capacity |% of Historical
Average

Historical

Average

Trinity Lake
20% | 30%

Shasta Reservoir
31% | 51%

Lake Oroville
29% | 47%

Folsom Lake
24% | 49%

New Melones
13% | 22%

Don Pedro Reservoir
35% | 53%

Exchequer Reservoir
9% | 19%

San Luis Reservoir
20% | 30%

Millerton Lake
34% | 66%

Perris Lake
35% | 45%

Castaic Lake
39% | 49%

Pine Flat Reservoir
15% | 37%







12/17/2015

1

ENERGY OBJECTIVES UPDATE 

STATE WATER CONTRACTORS 
BOARD MEETING

DECEMBER 17,  2015

Goals and Objectives
OBJECTIVE DESCRIPTION Metric

Strategic Plan to develop a more cost 

effective power supply

Coordinate with DWR on  Near-Term (up 

to 5 years) and Long-Term (up to 20 

years) Resource Plan

1. Maximum Value and Minimize Costs 

2. Update IRP

Identify and Address Near-term Energy 

Risk

Coordinate with DWR on Power 

Resource, Transmission Service, Staffing 

and State Energy Policy Issues

1. Assess Market Opportunities and 

Operational Limits

2. Analyze DWR Management Reports

Seek Greenhouse Gas /

Renewables Policies that are 

Compatible with SWP Operations 

Work with DWR on appropriate 

greenhouse gas and renewable policies 

that reflect SWP utility characteristics 

and rate concerns

1. Mitigate Cap-and-Trade Costs

2. Acquire Competitive Renewables

3. Get message out on project impacts

Obtain a new FERC Relicense that 

retains the value of Oroville & SoCal 

Facilities and complies with 

environmental regulations

Oroville Water Quality Certification 1. Obtain new FERC license for Lake 

Oroville

2. Obtain agreement on Habitat 

Expansion Plan

2

Budget Actual

FERC & Relicensing $315,000 ~ $30,000

Energy Resources $317,000 ~ $35,000

12/17/2015

             Agenda Item 9



12/17/2015

2

Oroville Relicensing
 Post License ecological and recreational obligations as much as $1 billion 

 Lake Orville Relicensing Team (LORT 2.0) – Jeff Davis, Mike Melanson and 
Tom Berliner with support from MWD and SWC

 NMFS BiOp - Final Regulatory document before FERC license (areas of 
interest flows, temperatures and non-jeopardy)

 Habitat Expansion Plan - The proposed activities are intended to expand 
the amount of spawning, rearing and adult holding habitat available for 
2,000 to 3,000 Central Valley spring-run Chinook salmon (Spring-Run) and 
Central Valley steelhead (Steelhead). 
 Proposed activities rejected by NMFS in January 2014

 It can stand on its own but assessing fit with YCWA and NMFS announced $500 million Yuba 
River Salmon Initiative

 Well coordinated with DWR – credit to Ted Craddock and his team

Budget Actual

Relicensing $275,000 ~ $20,000

312/17/2015

Post-2020 Energy Policy

Budget Actual

FERC Counsel $40,000 ~ $10,000

Dick Ferreira, Craig Jones, Strategic 
Resource Advisors & CMUA Dues

$317,000 ~ $35,000

412/17/2015



12/17/2015

3

Where to Engage & Why

• Air Resources Board

• CA Independent 
System Operator

• California Energy 
Commission

• California Public 
Utility Commission

• Peak Reliability and 
Western Electric 
Coordinating Council

• Western Interconnect 
Reliability Advisory 
Board (WIRAB)

• Federal Energy 
Regulatory 
Commission

512/17/2015

Greenhouse Gas – ARB & 
Department of Finance
Cap-and-Trade
 SWP placed in electric sector but did not receive free emission allowances 

like electric utilities.  
 Cost to date are ~$2 million per month / ~ $20 million per year (would be 

higher if not for, low pump load and low carbon market clearing price)
 ARB has initiated amendments to make improvements and “chart post-2020 

implementation Program.”

Update to the Scoping Plan
 This is the roadmap the state will take to achieve Post-2020 Carbon 

reduction goals

 Investment Plan - $10 million appropriations in 
each of last two years

Renewable Procurements

Budget Actual

SWC members and 
SWC

N/A: Payment in kind
& SWC staff time

$0

612/17/2015



12/17/2015

4

FERC Intervention

Budget Actual

FERC $40,000 ~ $10,000

• Last two Proposed 
Rated Cases would 
have increased SWP 
transmission $5+
million

• Interventions by 
SWC, DWR and 
others reduced that 
by ~ half

712/17/2015

CA ISO, CEC, CPUC & Regionally
CAISO Expansion
 CAISO has statutory authority to justify its expansion

 The expansion will have significant effect on SWP transmission rates 
and energy costs

Transmission Planning and Cost
 Adding new utilities to ISO will lead to expanded transmission studies 

and reallocation of transmission costs

 Significant new renewables will cause additional buildout of 
transmission system

Utility General Rate Case

812/17/2015



12/17/2015

5

Next Steps

 Proposed work plan including budget

 Develop communications plan including 
messaging and leave behind documents 

Build Coalitions with stakeholders we are aligned 
(See Board Action Request)

 Assemble Work Groups

912/17/2015



Page 1 of 2 
Steve01 05 16 2015-2016 replacement pipelines update belding drive.docx 

8-B 
      

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
JANUARY 5, 2016  

 
 

RE: 2015/2016 REPLACEMENT PIPELINES UPDATE (BELDING 
DRIVE)  

 
Over the course of constructing our 2015-2016 replacement pipeline project, the scope 
of work has expanded repeatedly to avoid trench cutting newly rehabilitated streets and 
avoid pipeline leaks on ageing pipelines caused by vibrating equipment within the City 
of Palm Springs.  The intent of the staff report is to update the board on the additional 
pipeline replacements and costs related to this effort. 
 
To accommodate the City of Palm Springs 2015 street rehabilitation and slurry project, 
Agency staff initially worked with the City’s engineering department on a schedule to 
allow the Agency to replace the pipeline within Indian Canyon Drive, Stevens Road, and 
Wawona Road prior to the street rehabilitation work.  
 
On September 23, 2015, Borden Excavating was awarded the contract for constructing 
the 2015/2016 Replacement Pipeline Project in the amount of $730,269.00. The project 
included installation of replacement pipelines within Indian Canyon Drive (approximately 
2,700 feet of 12” ductile iron pipe between Tahquitz Canyon Way and Alejo Road), 
Stevens Road (approximately 600 feet of 8” ductile iron pipe between Palm Canyon 
Drive and Kaweah Road), and Wawona Road (approximately 600 feet of 8” ductile iron 
pipe between Steven Road and Vista Chino). The budget amount for the work is 
$1,200,000 to include engineering, construction, inspection, and overhead costs.  
 
The City’s rehabilitation work has been modified, adding several streets to include 
Belding Drive, between Sunset Avenue and Cerritos Road. The existing water main 
located within Belding Drive (4” diameter) was installed in 1946 and has been identified 
by staff as a priority main to be replaced and is scheduled to be part of the Agency’s 
2017/2018 replacement pipeline project. Since 2010, the main has experienced 31 
leaks.  
 
Due to the condition of the main, and the potential of numerous leaks to occur during 
the City’s rehabilitation work, staff has expanded the current replacement pipeline scope 
of work. Prior to the City’s grinding operations, Borden Excavation will install 
approximately 700 feet of 8” ductile iron pipe within Belding Drive, to include 11 services 
and 1 fire hydrant. Utilizing established costs provided as part of Borden’s original bid, 
the installation will cost $96,200. The Agency will provide Borden with the mainline pipe 
for a cost of approximately $20,000. Inspection costs are anticipated to be 
approximately $9,000, for a total estimated cost in the amount of $125,200.  
 



Page 2 of 2 
Steve01 05 16 2015-2016 replacement pipelines update belding drive.docx 

 
 
At the December 1 Board Meeting work was expanded to include San Miguel and 
Sunny Dunes Road. To date, the total amount to be paid, to include the San Miguel and 
Sunny Dunes addition, engineering, inspection, and overheads is anticipated to be 
$1,287,000. With the addition of Belding Drive, the total work order costs is anticipated 
to be $1,412,200, to include engineering, inspection, installation, materials, and 
overheads. This is approximately 17.7% over the work order budget of $1,200,000. The 
Agency has $100,000 in the 2015/2016 budget for contingency mains (emergency 
pipeline replacement) to cover some of the estimated overage. This will reduce the total 
anticipated amount over budget to $112,200, or 8.6%. 
 
Although staff anticipates exceeding the budget by 8.6%, the Agency was able to 
replace over 6,500 feet of mains that had a total of 180 leaks since 2010 that cost the 
Agency approximately $60,000 in labor to repair. Also, the cost to install the pipeline 
from Borden Excavation was approximately 22% lower than the next bidder, saving the 
Agency approximately $170,000 in construction costs for a combined savings of 
$230,000.  
 
Finally, it should be noted that the total combined budget amount for the last two 
replacement pipelines was $2.9 million and the anticipated total amount spent for these 
combined projects is $2.9 million. 


























































































	Agenda 01 05 16
	Item 3 12 15 15 Board Minutes
	3
	MINUTES
	OF THE REGULAR MEETING
	Attendance

	Item 4 01 05 16 GM Report
	JANUARY 5, 2016

	Item 5 12 22 15 Exec Cmttee Minutes
	Item 7A 01 05 16 Board Attendance  Irrigation Leader workshop staff report.pdf
	Item 7B 01 05 16 Board Attendance Urban Water Institute staff report.pdf
	Item 7C 01 05 16 2014-2015 Replacement Pipeline Acceptance Staff Report
	Item 7D 01 05 16 Snow Creek  Hydro JTN CVWD DWA staff report
	JANUARY 5, 2016
	RE: REQUEST APPROVAL TO ENTER INTO A JOINT AGREEMENT WITH SCE AND JTN ENERGY LLC FOR SNOW CREEK HYDRO POWER PURCHASE AGREEMENT

	ADP8F79.tmp
	10.08. Attorneys' Fees and Costs.  In any judicial or other  proceeding arising out of or related to this Agreement or the Services provided hereunder, the prevailing party shall recover all reasonable costs incurred pertaining to such proceeding, inc...


	Item 7E 01 05 16 Execute compensation agrmts city of dhs staff report
	RE: REQUEST AUTHORIZATION TO EXECUTE COMPENSATION AGREEMENTS FOR THE TRANSFER OF THE CITY HALL ANNEX PROPERTY LOCATED AT 11875 & 11999 PALM DRIVE AND FOR THE TRANSFER OF THE CITY CORPORATE YARD EXPANSION PROPERTY LOCATED ON CHOLLA DRIVE TO THE CITY OF...

	Item 8A SWC_ MEMO TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DEC  16 2015 BOARD MEETING (DWA)-c1
	ADP83C7.tmp
	UMEMORANDUM
	1. USWPCA Board Meeting.
	2. UProposed Water Transfer.
	3. UWater Operations Report.


	Item 8B 01 05 16 2015-2016 Replacement Pipelines Update Belding drive
	Item 9A 01 05 16 PI Media
	Item 9B 01 05 16 PI Activities



